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The followng is a transcript of the
Redi stricting Public Hearing that occurred on October
27, 2010, 7:00 p.m, at Virginia Wstern Comunity
Col | ege, Natural Science Center, 3102 Colonia
Avenue, S.W, Roanoke, Virginia 24015 before the
Redi stricting Subconmttee of the Senate of Virginia
Conmittee on Privileges and El ections.

It was agreed that Frank R Austin, RVR
Notary Public in and for the Conmmonweal t h of
Virginia, at Large, would take said public hearing in
machi ne shorthand and transcribe the sane to
typewiting by means of conputer-aided transcription

SENATORS PRESENT:

JANET D. HOWELL, subcommittee chair
RALPH K. SM TH

MARY MARGARET WH PPLE

DONALD A. MCEACHI N

CREl GH R. DEEDS

HARRY B. BLEVI NS

STEPHEN H. MARTI N

JOHN S. EDWARDS
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SENATOR HOVELL: Good eveni ng,
everyone, and thank you for com ng out for
the first of our public hearings on
redistricting. | amJanet Howell. 1I'mthe
chai rman of the Privileges and El ections
Committee of the Senate and chairman of this
speci al subcommttee that is dealing with

redistricting. | represent part of Northern
Virginia up near Tysons Corner. That's how
people nostly can identify it. It's a real

pl easure to be down here with you.
' mgoing to ask the various nenbers
of the conmttee to introduce thenselves,

and we'l|l start here, if | may.
SENATOR WHI PPLE: | am Mary Mar gar et
Whi pple. | represent Senate District 31,

which is nost of Arlington County, the City
of Falls Church and a small portion of
Eastern Fairfax County.

SENATOR MCEACHIN: 1" m Donal d
McEachin. | represent the 9th Senate
District which is Eastern Ri chnond,

i ncluding the capital, East Henrico and all
of Charles City County.

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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SENATCR DEEDS: | am Crei gh Deeds

fromBath County. | represent the 25th
District, which is part of Buckingham all
of Nelson, nost of -- nost of Albenarle, all

of Charlottesville, the City of Buena Vista,
most of Rockbridge, all of Alleghany, City
of Covington and Bat h.

SENATOR BLEVINS: | am Harry Bl evins.
| represent the 14th District, and that
conpri ses nost of Chesapeake, the |argest
part of Chesapeake, and a small part of
Virgini a Beach.

SENATOR HOVELL: As you can tell, we
have cone fromall over the state to hear
what you would |like us to do on
redistricting, but before we start, | see
two of ny friends, fornmer menbers of the
Senate, who are here, G anger MacFarland and
Brandon Bell. Thank you both. It's really
nice to see you again.

MR. MACFARLAND: Thank you. Nice to
see you-all.

SENATOR HOVELL: | have a few
comrents that 1'd like to make to sort of

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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set the background for this evening, and
then we wll be asking for any commrents,
things you would like for us to know about
what you would |ike us to do.

This is the first of four public
meetings we are going to be having this year
before the session starts. W'I| be having
more after we get final data. W are going
all around the state to try and find out
what people would like us to be doing.

The reason we are doing this is that
the Senate Privil eges and El ections
Committee is charged with being the
conmttee that deals with redistricting.
The House, of course, also has a privileges
and el ections commttee, and they, |
believe, already had a nmeeting in this very
spot .

The way that redistricting works is
that any menber of the |egislator can
introduce a bill that will have a
redistricting plan. However, that bill nust
go through the Privil eges and El ections
Commttee, and then it will be treated just

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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| i ke any other bill. It has to pass the
Senate and the House and be signed by the
Governor. It could be anended. It could be

vetoed. There are all the various
possibilities that goes with any bill that
cones before the |egislator

We think it's extremely inportant
that we have public input. W really need
to know what you view as inportant
consi derations for us, for exanple, what
communities of interest you would like to
have preserved in your region. As we are
fromall over the state, we mght not know
that if you don't tell us.

' msure you know what redistricting
I's, but just to give a little background,
it's redrawi ng the boundaries of |egislative
districts. It's often incorrectly called
“reapportionnment,” and that's not what we
are tal king about tonight. W are talking
about the boundaries of |egislative
districts. |It's done every ten years after
the national census, and it's designed to
reflect population shifts that have taken

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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pl ace since the [ ast census. W are
required by the U S. Constitution to
redistrict the U S. Congressional Districts,
and the Virginia Constitution requires us to
do the Virginia Senate and House Districts.
The Ceneral Assenbly is responsible for both
the Virginia Senate and House Districts and
the U S. House of Representative Districts.
Localities, however, will be doing their own
redistricting. W' re not involved in that,
in that piece.

The U. S. Supreme Court has held that
the Constitution requires "One Person, One
Vote." Districts nust be as equal and
practicable in population. Districts with
sl ower growth or popul ation | oss nust
expand. Districts wth faster growh nust
shrink. If not, population shifts would
dilute the vote of the persons in districts
w th nore peopl e.

Even though we do not have detailed
data from census yet, we do know that there
have been signature population shifts in
Virginia over the |ast decade. Shifts in

Frank R. Austin, RMR





O© 0O NO O WDN B

NNMNNMNNNRPRPRRPRPRPRRRERREPR
D WNRPFPF OWOWOWMNOOJOMWDNERO

Page 8

any one district inpact the other ones.

It's inevitable. M favorite or perhaps

| east favorite exanple of this is that ten
years ago ny district, the 32nd District,
actually was within 330 votes of the perfect
si ze, but because Northern Virginia had

pi cked up additional population and seats,
my district was shifted by 65,000 people. |
| ost 65, 000 people and | gained 65, 000
people. They were just different people.
And | think that's just illustrative of what
can be happeni ng throughout, throughout the
state.

As you know, l|ast April 1st was the
census day when the popul ati on was
enunmerated. This com ng Decenmber 31st we're
expecting to get official population counts
to the states fromcensus, and then in
February or March, and not until then, we
wi |l get the detailed popul ation data we'l|l
use for redistricting and to draw the new
maps.

Every state has to redistrict, but we
have to do it faster than anybody el se.

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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Most states will actually have about a year
and a half to redistrict. Qur time frame is
very, very short, because all Cenera
Assenbly menbers are running in 2011, and we
must run in our new districts. So -- and
any redistricting plan that we enact nust go
t hrough the Department of Justice for
precl earance because we are a Chapter 5
Voting Rights Act state. The Departnent of
Justice has 60 days in which to decide if
our plan meets nuster. So primaries, which
usual |y woul d be held in June next year,
wll be delayed. W don't yet know unti
when. The Senate passed a bill |ast year
that woul d have put forward a specific date.
The House did not accept that and carried
over the bill. So at this point we do not
know when prinmaries will be next year. Ten
years ago they were held in August. That
gives you sone idea of what it mght be. It
coul d be Septenber. W don't know.

We have to bal ance many | ega
requirenents. W have to -- our
redistricting plans nust conply with U S

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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and Virginia constitutions, state | aw and
the Federal Voting R ghts Act of 1965. W
have to conply with the "One Person, One
Vote." That's based on the U S.
Constitution. The House of Representatives
must have a very strict mathematica

equal ity anong the various districts. One
state had within 13 votes, and it was turned
down. So for the U S. House of
Representatives, it has to be virtually
identically sized districts. For GCeneral
Assenbly districts, the courts have all owed
more variance than that. But we have never
been given an exact nunber, so we don't know
what that is.

Under the Virginia Constitution, our
districts have to be contiguous and conpact,
and the Voting Rights Act prohibits
redistricting plans that would deny or
abridge the right to vote on account of
race, color or being in a | anguage mnority.

W expect both the Senate and the
House P & E conmittees will adopt sone
redistricting criteria relevant to that

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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particul ar body, but that has not happened
yet. | did want to mention that there's --
|'mvery aware a |ot of interest in
nonpartisan redistricting conm ssions. The
Senate passed bills for the last three
years -- actually, they were Senator Deeds
bills -- on a bipartisan basis.
Overwhel m ngly, three years running, the
Senate has passed those bills, and each tine
they' ve been rejected by the House. So
we're not going to be having nonpartisan
conmi ssi ons.

We al so had hoped to have joint
hearings. That's always been the way in the
past, but the House turned down our offer
for joint hearing, which is why I'msorry
you have to be here two nights, but they
said no to us.

There are handouts for you. | hope
you have them | know |I've throwmn a |ot of
information very quickly at you. But there
is information for you to take hone, and we
are really here to hear fromyou, and we are
eager to know what your advice to us is, and

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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| see three people have signed up so far.
So that's great. And I'll go in order.
Actual ly, the first one is nmy husband, and
he signed up by mstake. So two people. He
m ght have advice for what Roanoke and
Sout hwest shoul d do, but if | were you, |
woul dn't listen to it.

So the first one who signed up is
Ml ly Mcd ennan fromthe League of Wonen
Voters. | think it says, "Southwest
Virginia."

MS. MCCLENNAN: "OF Virginia."

SENATOR HOWELL: "OF Virginia."

MS. MCCLENNAN: \Where would you Iike
me to speak from Madam Chai r man?

SENATOR HOVELL: That's fi ne.

MS. MCCLENNAN: Right where | an?

SENATOR HOVELL: Everybody can hear
you.

MS. MCCLENNAN: Good eveni ng, Madam
Chai rman and nenbers of the Senate
Privileges and El ection Conmttee. M nane
is Molly McC ennan. | ama nenber of the
Board of the League of Wnen Voters of

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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Virginia. Thank you for scheduling these
hearings at various |ocations across the
state early in the process. W are great
supporters of transparency in government.
Thus, we hope they're being taped and
broadcasted or at |east posted on the web so
t hose who cannot attend physically can still
partici pate.

Hearing citizen input about fairness
of the redistricting process prior to the
| i nes being drawn we hope will encourage you
to consider what you hear before a fina
plan is voted upon.

As many of you know, our president,
d ga Hernandez, in the early nornings of
R chnond has net with many groups on the
need to nmake the process of redistricting
more equitable. The lead belief is that the
voters shoul d choose their representatives
and not the other way around. Thus, the
practice of incumbent protection should be
done at the ballot box and not by draw ng
boundaries so safe that it favors one party
over the other.

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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Commitnent to the rules of the state
constitution of contiguous borders,
conpactness of districts and representation
in proportion to the popul ation needs to be
adhered to. Consideration of comunities of
i nterest needs to be carefully observed.

Make no mistake. We are aware that
both parties have been guilty of partisan
protection in the past. That is why we
think there is no -- there has to be a
better way to serve the citizens of the
commonweal th and get nore effective
gover nment s.

The League of Wonen Voters has a | ong
history of fighting against attacks on the
basis -- on the basic constitutional right
to fair and equal representation guaranteed
to all citizens by the Constitution. The
League has worked vigorously in the
Commonweal th and across the country to
secure representative redistricting plans in
their states. W are seeking reforms that
assure that the redistricting process is
nonpartisan, equitable and open

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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We understand that the current
sharing of political power in the General
Assenbly provides a best opportunity for
enactment of redistricting reformthat we
have had in recent decades or may have in
the future, but it troubles us to hear the
runors that a backroom agreenent has been
reached between chanbers to accept each
other's plans, thus protecting incunbents
and perpetuating nore polarization of
gover nment .

The current systemin Virginia only
encourages partisan gerrymandering which
creates seats so politically askew that the
opposition has little chance of ever
exceeding the incunbent. It subverts the
denocratic system because it allows
politicians to choose their voters rather
than vice versa. It limts the vetting of
new people with new ideas and solutions to
public policy issues. Partisan
gerrymandering has fairly reduced the nunber
of conpetitive seats in Virginia.

In 2007 Virginia Senate races -- in

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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the 2007 Virginia Senate races, incunbents
of 17 of the 40 races had no opposition, and

only nine races were conpetitive. In the
100 House of Del egate races, 30 -- |I'm
sorry -- 57 incunbents had no opposition and

only 12 of 100 races were conpetitive.

In 2009 legislative elections, 32 of
the 100 nmenbers of the General Assenbly
faced no opposition and only 12 races were
consi dered conpetitive.

Voters feel that their representative
of the inposing party has no reason to
listen to themas constituents. The |ack of
contested and conpetitive districts has
contributed to a decreasing voter turnout in
Virginia. The voter turnout for state-w de
and House of Del egates elections in 1997 was
49 and a half percent. In 2001 it was 46
percent. In 2005 it was only 45 percent.
The turnout in the 2003 House of Del egates
el ection, when there was no state-w de
races, was 31 percent. The 52.7 percent
turnout in the 2006 heavily contested U. S.
senatorial election was a marked contrast to

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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the 39th percent turnout in 2002 when an
i ncunbent U.S. senator was contested by only
two wel | -known candi dates.

Voter turnout for the 2009 genera
el ection showed a simlar trend. |In
contrast to the 74.5 percent turnout for the
2008 presidential election, the turnout for
the 2009 Virginia |legislative election was
40. 4 percent, which was an inprovenment on
the 30.2 percent turnout in the 2007
el ections, the lowest rate reported by the
State Board of Elections, going back to
1976.

One of the nost significant effects
of partisan gerrymandering in Virginia, as
el sewhere in the country, is its
contribution to the increasing polarization
of legislative bodies. As quoted in the
League of Wonmen Voters Virginia study Does
Your Vote Really Count, "Wth little reason
to fear voters, representatives increasingly
cater to party insiders and donors rather
than to the political center. Bipartisan
conprom se around nodern policies takes a

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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back seat to party loyalty, resulting in
historic |l evels of polarization."”

This is certainly true of the
Virginia General Assenbly of recent years.
The gerrymandering districts established in
the 2001 redistricting have resulted in the
el ection of candi dates who are unwilling to
conprom se on |egislation, the budget
transportation issues and funding. W are
encouraged that you are listening early
before you get the revealing consensus
numbers. We ask that you work with the
House in good faith and in transparent ways
as you work through the process. Input
shoul d and can be taken by the Wb, should
be posted so that the public can see the
process. Mre hearings should be schedul ed
once the legislation is drafted and maps are
proposed.

Virginia is the cradle of denocracy
inthe United States. Let's again be a
beacon of good government and show t he
nation that by having a better system we can
and wi Il have better government for and by

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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t he people when they truly have a voice.

SENATCR HOVELL: In the beginning you
mentioned that you would like it on the Wb.
| meant to say that we have M. Austin here,
who's a court reporter, and everything
that's said wll be going up on the Wb.
Thank you.

We have two nore nmenbers who have
joined us, Senator Steve Martin and Senat or
Ral ph Smith, and | would just I|ike to ask
themto describe their districts, or
geographically their districts.

SENATOR MARTIN: | could do the lines
for you if you want.

| represent the 11th Senate District,
which is nost of the County of Chesterfield
and all the City of Colonial Heights. |
previously chaired the Privileges and
El ections Commttee back a few years ago. |
have been through a couple of redistrictings
al ready, one in the House and then one in
the Senate. This will be ny third.

SENATOR SM TH: Wl |, thank you. |
am a menber of the Privileges and El ections

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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Committee, but I'mnot a nmenber of this
subcomm ttee. Thank you for giving ne a
sign and a seat up front anyway. So | am
here to welcone all of you to ny part of the

commonweal th. It's so good to have you. |
t hank you for choosing to have your Kkickoff
meeting here. | represent Roanoke County,

Mont gonery County, the City of Salem the
Gty of Radford and Botetourt County. |
thank all of you for com ng out.

SENATOR HOVELL: Thank you. The next
person who signed up is Charles Jordan. He
just wal ked out.

I's there anyone el se who would |ike

to make coments? Yes, sir. Well, we'll
give hima few mnutes. | think they're
trying to find M. -- you don't see hinf
Ckay. |s there anyone el se?

MS. CREASY: Yes. It seens to ne --

SENATOR HOVWELL: |'msorry. |If you
woul d gi ve your nane.

MS. CREASY: Barbara Creasy. | think
the reason |'mhere is | was bothered ten
years ago. It doesn't make rational sense.

Frank R. Austin, RMR





O© 0O NO O WDN B

NNMNNMNNNRPRPRRPRPRPRRRERREPR
D WNRPFPF OWOWOWMNOOJOMWDNERO

Page 21

| like what the |ady fromthe | eague said.
That's what we want. W want somnet hing
rational. What -- | guess that's what |I'm
saying, is we really need the nonpartisan

i dea, pl ease.

SENATOR HOVWELL: Thank you. Anyone
el se?

SENATOR MARTIN:  May | ask a question
because | cane in alittle late. Dd
you-all go over, for informational purpose,
| et them know the requirenents with regards
to redistricting and all that sort of thing?

SENATOR HOVNELL: Yes, we did. Yeah,
we did.

MS. CREASY: Do you anticipate
problenms? 1s this going to be difficult to
get through?

SENATOR HOVWELL: You know, | amvery
concerned about our tight time frame. That
bothers me a | ot, because we get the data
that we need -- census says we will be the
first state to get the data, but it mght be
February. It could be early March. W have
to get the districts -- the -- the

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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| egi sl ation passed in tine to go to the
Departnent of Justice, which has, they said
now, 60 days, and then we have to have
running districts so people have tine to,
you know, to becone candidates to run and so
on. So this time frame bothers ne.

SENATOR MARTIN:  And this -- push it
back, and for the voters, they mght, in
fact, appreciate the fact that they have
shorter canpaigns. You shouldn't expect the
filing deadlines until md August. Then the
nom nation is not until Septenber, which
crunches up the, at best, maybe a general
el ection, |like no nore than seven weeks at
the nost. And so that part of it, you know,
the public will appreciate. But getting it
t hrough the Justice Department, got sone
probl ens, have themreact to it, what
happens then? These are --

MS. CREASY: Are you going to use
conmputer nodels at all?

SENATOR HOWNELL: Oh, yes.

SENATOR MARTIN:  Been doing that for
the last 20 years.

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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SENATCR HOVELL: They have becone
very sophisticated. The Division of
Legi sl ative Services is purchasing sone of

these programs for us. They are being -- we
have some of them here. They're being
trained on howto do it. |In addition, we

are expecting a lot of participation, and
|'"mcertainly encouraging it fromthe --
fromthe public with sending your own plans
into us for us to | ook at.

My theory is, the nore plans we have
to look at, the better job we are going to
be able to do, because each of themwl|
have perhaps sonething that nobody el se
t hought of, but -- and there is a professor
at George Mason University -- his nane,
think, is Mke MDonald -- who is putting
out a free programthat anybody can use, and
then it can -- you can forward to us then
what ever your plan is for us to consider
So | think it's going to be the nost open
process ever, just because technology is
going to make it much nore transparent and
easy for people to participate. M concern
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as chairman is just how we get the job done
in tinme.

SENATCR MARTIN.  Madam Chairman, if |
m ght comment, when you submt your

suggestions to us, | nean, it's really easy
to set, draw lines in your area as to what
you'd like for themto be, like as if it can

be done in a vacuum but it's got to be done
in relationship to the districts around us.
And when we get to West Virginia, we can't
go any further. That's going to be it. So
things al nost have to really start in the
corner and work in to really get it to work,
and where we are when we get in the mddle
Is where we are when we get in the mddle.
Then you have -- you do sone adjusting,
si zi ng around.

But beyond the constitutiona
requi rements of contiguity conpactness and
communities of interest, wth conpactness, |
don't know that we have done -- well,
anyway, both parties, you can stretch that.
But we al so have the issue of concerns
for -- for the Justice Departnent that's

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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going to certainly weigh in on that and give
us guidance with regard to mnority
interests and that sort of thing. So the
question is how far, to what extent do you
go to create a black influence district or a
bl ack, you know, najority district. And we
have had cases in the past on that.

| was | ooking yesterday, as a matter
of fact, Madam Chairman, at the 3rd
Congressional District, and that not only
crosses bodies of water. It actually stops
on a body of water and skips |and and uses
the river bottomto go up the river sone
ml|es before it picks back up. And so
it's -- it, you know, how far do you go, and
that's already going through -- and that's
not being done as an attack.

SENATOR MCEACHIN: Vel |, 1'mjust
going to make a comment. To single out the
3rd Congressional District --

SENATOR MARTIN: | wasn't trying to
do that.

SENATOR MCEACHIN:  1"'mgoing to still
make ny comment. To single out the 3rd

Frank R. Austin, RMR
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Congressional District is a bit unfair
because there are a nunber of districts that
| eapfrog over, over boundari es.

| was once -- | used to represent the
74t h House District, and during the |ast
redistricting, they actually gave ne a piece
of Prince George County that was popul ated
by no -- by rabbits and squirrels and no
one. So there are plenty of exanples that
one can use, and there are |lots of ways we
can do it better

SENATOR MARTIN:  And | did not nean
-- Madam Chairman, the only reason | grabbed
that was because | happened to be | ooking at
that one yesterday and | said, "Boy." But
yes, absolutely. That's the reason | said
both parties, we have just stretched sone
things just out there in order to try to
adhere to what the Justice Departnent tells
us we need to do. So all of those things
have got to be taken into account when we do
it.

So back to the original part of ny
conmment, when you give us sone

Frank R. Austin, RMR





O© 0O NO O WDN B

NNMNNMNNNRPRPRRPRPRPRRRERREPR
D WNRPFPF OWOWOWMNOOJOMWDNERO

Page 27

reconmendat i ons specific for any particular
area, then we -- it's not going to be able
to be done in a vacuumis nmy point. It's
got to be done with all those other things
and consi derati ons.

SENATOR HOWELL: Well, let's see.
M. Jordan, are you back? M. Jordan, did
you want to make some comments? Thank you

MR. JORDAN: Yes. Let's see. | just
found out about this hearing recently, so
hadn't had a chance to finalize nmy conments,
and | hope to be able to submt theml|ater
in the entirety.

SENATOR HOWELL: Absol utely.

MR. JORDAN. What 1'd like to say,
first of all, I would recomend that
the conmttees foll ow some of the guidelines
and the standards that have been established
over the years by -- by various good
government groups and by the courts and so
on, first of all, the respective
conmuni ties, comunities of interest,
whet her ethic, environmental, denographic or
econom c, keep planning districts together
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to the extent practical and reasonable, keep
districts contiguous for pedestrians,
vehicular traffic and mass transit, run
el ectoral district boundaries along county
| i nes, respect counties and cities and
bor oughs and magi sterial districts and
nei ghbor hoods to the extent possible, and
where they have to be divided, give sone
preference to natural boundaries such as
rivers, mountain ridges, railroads,
hi ghways, parkland and forest.

Let's see. Please avoid dividing
nei ghbors, including South Roanoke and
Li ndenwood. And please count -- to the
extent possible, count institutional
popul ati ons in people's hone comunities
where they, their famlies and their
nei ghbors vote. Keep districts conpact
rather than elongated or contorted. Provide
each district a nunber and a name, based on
-- a nane based on the character,
community's | andmarks contained in the
district.

Pl ease avoid pitfalls that tend to
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t hwart denocracy. That woul d be preserving
current districts so they would put us

agai nst popul ation shifts, as they have had
their day and nust gave way to new districts
that are now deserving. You know, do not
protect incunbent |egislatives with eroding
bases of support as their artificial tenure
will only delay the passage of innovative

| egislation that we need in a changing
wor | d.

Pl ease do not treat this as a
partisan gane, because that's not what
matters to us as voters. W have put our
interest in people, not parties, and we mXx
them on our |ocal governments and, you know,
they don't align along the traditional party
li nes.

Pl ease keep the process open, invite,
facilitate and consider public input
t hroughout the process, invite public
comrent on maps submtted by the public,
provide full public report, and if it
becones clear that preference voting is off
in one of the districts, or that changes in
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the | ocal government boundaries or the state
line would result in better representation
pl ease report those facts, because although
sone -- there is sonme interests that may not
want to see the information, the public
deserves to know about any opportunity to

i mprove government.

When you encounter problens, ask for
help. "Il gladly provide assistance, and
|'msure there are nany ot her experienced
vol unteers who can be lined up across the
state.

| suggest you verify information
because with the -- with the best available
sources. For exanple, this book,

Redi stricting Law 2010, by the National
Conference of State Legislators, says on
page 84 that Fairfax City has bailed out of
Section 4 of the Voting Rights Act, but on
page 97 it says Fairfax County has bail ed
out. So | can't tell whether it's the city
or the county. And there is no source or
date provided in the document to docunent
these actions, and it is difficult to tell
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which of either of locality is still subject
to federal preclearance.

So | thank you for this opportunity,
and | hope to submt ny comments in a better
arrangenent at a future tinme. Thank you.

SENATCR HOVELL: Thank you very nuch,
and we are eager to receive them W are
eager to receive your expanded conments.

MR. JORDAN:. Thank you.

SENATOR HOWELL: Do it by Internet if
you woul d |ike. Ckay.

Sir, are you ready?

MR COOPER:  Yes.

SENATOR HOWELL: If you woul d
i dentify yourself.

MR. COOPER: M nane is Carl Cooper,

Roanoke City. | would like to begin by
saying hello to Senator Smth, former nayor
of Roanoke City. |It's good to see you, sir.

| too also only recently sort of was
noticed of this neeting, and I will be
revising and expandi ng ny comments and
submtting them too.

| guess | would like to begin by
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saying one of the main things | would like
to see happen in this process is that the
process is fair, but also -- but the main
thing is sonme bipartisanship.

Sonetines for sone light reading I'lI
go back and go over the Federalist Papers
and see sonme of the back and forth that
happened during the tinme when they were
witing those docunents and sone of the
maj or issues that they had to confront, not
unli ke what we have to confront today, and
|'mal ways struck by the civility and the
tone that was taken between peopl e that
vehenent |y disagreed with each other on
policy positions. It was phenonenal, the
courteousness and the ability that they had
to get along and to carry out public
business in a way that engendered confidence
fromthe public in that process, and then
the public hearing it out.

So | would ask if -- if you guys
could find a way to have sone
bi partisanship. | know that behind cl osed

doors you are probably |ike great pals and,
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you know, everything is fun, and by the tine
it gets to the press, there's a war going
on. But it's having an effect throughout
t he commonweal th, need | say throughout the
country, and I would just say to each of
you, because you are all fine, distinguished
peopl e who took an oath to protect and to
serve and do the best for the commonweal t h
and for the country, and I would ask each of
you during those heated noments, when you
are really getting down to the nuts and
bolts of putting this together, to try to
keep that in mnd.

| will go on to say that the process
really does need to be rational. | nean
over the last three, four, three, four tines
of this redistricting process, | nmean, it's
alnost |ike a winner-take-all, and the party
in power is the bully, and they get to do
pretty nuch what they want, draw it the way
they want, and it's like, "Ch, well, too
bad, mnority party. W are going to do it
the way that we want to."

Vell, | for one, and nost citizens,
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don't want it that way. | mean, because as
a society, as a state, as a country, we
don't operate that way. That's not how we
operate. \Wen we have to do things out in
the community, we rely on each other no
matter what the situation is, and we expect
the same thing fromthe legislator, for
you-all to rely on each other, and so enough
t here.

So | would also ask that you guys do
as much as you can to limt the -- limt
out side influences on the process. |
bel i eve that we know that, okay, Virginiais
going first. W know that the presidential
el ections are comng up. W know t hat
Virginia gets | ooked at in a nunber of ways
for a nunber of reasons that has nationa
implications. And | would just ask each of
you and ask your colleagues also to try to,
you know, keep those outside influences on
our process, on our commopnweal th process,
and the things that are best for our
commonweal th, keep them at bay, okay, and
have everyone thinking about what is best
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for the commonweal th

And when we tal k about what's best,
one of the things that | would definitely
want to see and ask you to ensure that
communities of interest and the senator --
Senat or Maxwel | ?

SENATOR MARTIN:  Martin

MR. COOPER: Senator Martin brought
up as an exanpl e bl ack popul ati on and what
have you, and | would totally agree. |
mean, that's sonmething that needs to be
| ooked at, protected. There's also sone
mention about the bailouts, certain
| ocalities that opted out of not the whole
Gvil Rights Act, but that section on -- of
poling novenents. So | would ask that we
keep in mnd -- that we keep in mnd the --
the uni que historical challenges of
popul ati ons of color in this comonwealth.

For instance, in Roanoke Gty, which
has been characterized in the major press as
the nost segregated city in the South,
roughly 80 percent, 85 percent, sone would
even say 90 percent, of the popul ation of
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color lives in one quadrant of the city. So
i f during this process sonehow that was
gerrymandered in a certain way, okay, that
woul d be voting strength. So I would ask
the conmttee to be aware of those types of

situations and ensure that the -- the voting
strength -- and a lot of the voting strength
has built up over decades, okay -- that

voting strength be preserved, because even
where there is voting strength, especially
wi th popul ations of color and what have you,
it is -- the -- it does not approach the

maj ority voting strength, and so that needs
to be kept in mnd also.

The -- | agree that open access -- |
applaud the -- the legislator and this
conmttee for having these neetings. |
think in ten years -- who knows what wil|
happen by then, but nore advertising, a
little earlier and nore places, and in nore
pl aces, the nore -- nore mnority press, to
reach nore peopl e.

Al so, as this process goes forward,
maki ng sure that our Latino brothers and
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sisters and their popul ations al so know
about this process. And therein also is

a comunity that needs to be | ooked at

and -- and kept in mnd, because they have
significant challenges, somewhat |ike the
African American chal | enges, but they have
some uniquely different ones that inpact on

redistricting and revision. In ny revision
and extension of remarks |I'll get nore into
t hat .

So with that, that's all | have. And

| just thank you for |istening, and
appreci ate you guys being here.

SENATCR HOVELL: Thank you. Those
were very hel pful comments.

MR. COOPER: Thank you.

SENATOR HOWELL: Qur col | eague,
Senat or John Edwards, has arrived.

Thank you for comng. |'msurprised
you are here. | heard you had your own
meeting tonight on trains.

SENATOR EDWARDS: | did. | didn't
have this -- you know, we overlapped. | had
a town neeting on rail passenger
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transportation in Wstern Virginia, the
Departnent of Rail and Transportation. W
had a very good neeting, had a huge crowd.

| apol ogi ze for being late. | was going to
say this is so far fromwhere | |ive.
UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Di d you wal k?
SENATOR EDWARDS: | live about a half

amle fromhere

SENATOR SM TH:  Madam Chair, if | may
conmment. All the people that shoul d have
been here were over at John's. It was a
tremendous crowd, a |lot of energy to bring
passenger rail honme from Lynchburg on to
Roanoke. It ties into Amtrak. But you did
a good, good job with that.

And | nust say the House had its
ki ckof f hearing right here in this sane
room There were not nearly as many
menbers, conmittee nenbers fromthe House.
So that's -- that's a feather in this
senate's cap. You have -- you have a | ot
more people here. Unfortunately, we don't
have a |larger crowd out here to greet you,
but thanks for show ng up.
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SENATOR HOVWELL: Thank you. W are
doi ng everything we can think of. And thank
you for your, M. Cooper, for your
addi ti onal comments on other groups to
reach. W know at |east 60,000 e-mails have
gone out about these neetings, at |east
60, 000, and we keep trying to add on the
list. Now, that's state-wide. | nean, it
wasn't 60,000 people here, but at |east
60, 000 peopl e who' ve sent e-mails about our
hearings. W've notified the press. It's
up on the General Assenbly's website, and if
you have any other suggestions, especially
if they're free or nearly free, let us know

Does anyone el se have coments? Yes.

MR. MACFARLAND: Madam chai rman, one
thing that mght help the conmmttee would be
if the staff would supply it with Judge
Richard C. Pattisall's brief that he wote,
now about nine, eight or nine years ago,
that covers primarily contiguousness and
conpactness. It's very well witten. It
won't take you long to read, and frankly,
it's a good prinmer.
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He had the case, that you may recall
that occurred down in Eastern Virginia, and
| think it would be hel pful to you as you
approach that one conmponent of the overal
job. That was all | had to say.

SENATCR HOVELL: Great. Thank you.
Thank you. Okay. Anyone else? Do you have

anyt hi ng?

MR, BELL: | guess everybody here,
those that are here are all concerned about
| osing representation. It's in the back of

all of our mnds. But do you have anyt hing
prelimnarily about nunbers as far as
districts -- one that hasn't been mentioned
to the press, are we expected to -- to add
or -- to either add a congressional seat or
| ose a congressional seat? 1|s either of
that -- are the numbers shifting state-w de
now?

SENATOR HOVWELL: Let nme refer you to
M. Cotter fromthe Legislative Services if
you don't m nd

MR, COTTER: In terms of the U S.
Congress, based on what has been said so
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far, which is not final, so it could change,
but we are supposed -- Virginia is expected
to stay at 11 seats. And in terms of
Ceneral Assenbly districts, there are sonme
data for 2009 estimates that are actually up
on the redistricting website, if you | ook at
the Drawing the Line, the first for Draw ng
the Line which is up on the Virginia
redistricting website, it has sone
prelimnary nunbers about where the
districts currently are and how -- how in
deviation they are wth the popul ation
nunmbers.

MR, BELL: Just an average size, do
you know an average size, Senate and the
House, what they need to increase by?

MR. COTTER: | can you tell you the
average size, what -- that -- based on
prelimnary nunbers, what they' re -- what
the ideal is, what equality is. | can give

you that. But again, this is based on
estimated 2009. So these numbers will end
up changing for Senate districts if the

i deal population is 197,277. For
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congressional districts, its idea
popul ation is 717,370, and for House of
Del egates district, the ideal district is
78,911, and that's 2009 estimtes. So when
we actually get the real nunbers, that's
going to change somewhat, but that's what we
have right now.

MR, BELL: So roughly 20th Senate

District and eight -- eight -- |I'mjust
doing the math in ny head, how nuch bigger
they are. | guess the idea of how many

seats, kind of calculate how many seats in

the western part are considered likely to

shift to the glorious parts of Northern

Virginia. That goes through a ot of

peopl e's heads, what's going to happen as we

go long-termin the western part of the

state in concerns of representation. |

mean, Senator Deeds has a | ot of thought.
SENATOR DEEDS: |f you | ook at what's

on the web, we are down a little bit in

Sout hwest Virginia. Frombasically ny area

west, we are down about half a district. In

Sout h Hanpton Roads they are down a little
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bit nmore than a half a district. And Mark
Herring and Chuck Colgan up in Prince

W liam County, Loudoun County, are really
represent -- they represent al nost, between
the two of them they represent al nost four
districts. The population is three and a
hal f, four people. So there's going --
we're going to have to find a way to get a
district up there, a new district up there.
We are just going to have to -- the
districts are going to get larger all over
the state.

SENATOR MARTIN:  May | ask a question
to nake sure you are -- the territory you
are tal king about, frombasically your area,
when you say west, you nmean south to the --

SENATOR DEEDS: | nean from 29 west
to the -- to Southwest Virginia.

SENATOR MARTIN:  And all the way --
and south to -- that |eaves you about a

hal f --

SENATCOR DEEDS: | think -- as you
| ook at the prelimnary nunbers from 2009 --
this is all speculation because it's based
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on the 2009 nunbers -- we are about half a
district short from?29 west, and they are a
little bit nore than half a district short

t han South Hanpton Roads. The districts are
going to have to get larger to accommodate
popul ati on growh in Northern Virginia.
That's just a fact of life.

Now, does that nean -- you know what,
it doesn't look |ike we should | ose any nore
t han South Hanpton Roads shoul d | ose, but
the nunbers, we won't get prelimnary
nunbers fromthe Census Bureau until the 1st
of February. So anyone that is fooling with
maps right nowis just fooling.

SENATCR HOVELL: Thank you for saying
that, because |I'mconcerned. | hear, you
know, rumors that some people think that we
have already set the districts. W don't
even have the basic nunbers yet. W have
not set any districts. Wat you see in the
Drawing the Line, and it's on the -- on the
Web, is the best that we have got, and we
know it's inaccurate.

MR. MACFARLAND: M five-year-old
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daughter with crayons would be able to
vol unteer for the job.

SENATCR HOVELL: She may have the
best plan.

Anyone el se? Yes, sir

MR. WEBB: There's -- there has been
the tal k about depopulation --

SENATOR HOVWELL: I'msorry. Could
you identify yourself?

MR WEBB: M nane is Andrew Wbb. |

actually work here at this school. That's
how I found out about this. | got off work
at 7:00.

But there's been talk about, in
certain corners, about what's going to
happen to the 9th District as far as its
need to incorporate new areas due to a
certain amount of population retraction in

that area. O course that's a very -- with
it being a very unique district, unique
culture -- need to put it bluntly. There --

there is concern that as Northern Virginia
grows less and less, area that's
depopul ating like that, will get |ess and
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| ess representation

What can be done or is being done to
preserve the uni queness of the district |ike
that, and at the same time | would like to
say that whatever gets done is done in the
best interest of that district, and not
based on the insistences of presunptive
congressi onal candi dates who continue to
insist Salemwon't be in the 9th, but --

SENATOR HOVELL: The courts are very,
very clear. The districts have to be the
sane size.

SENATOR MARTIN:  Popul ation

SENATOR HOWELL: Excuse nme. The
popul ati on nust be the sane. They are not
permtting variance at the congressional
level. It's conceivable that you could --
if you tried -- if you are not exactly, and
| mean to the person, the sane size, you are
going to be in court. You may end up in
court anyway, but the courts have been very
clear that it is only in very unusua
ci rcunstances would they allow a few or
maybe even a few hundred people in a
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vari ation between congressional districts.
They have said that over and over in court.

So what ever the nunbers turn out,
that is going to drive how nuch larger the
Oth District will be. Now, you know, the
converse of that is people often in the --
in the areas with rapidly grow ng
popul ati ons are underrepresented. So that's
why the courts are stepping in and will step
in.

SENATCOR DEEDS: And, Madam Chair,
read Baker against Carr, 1964 Supreme Court
case, that's the foundation of all of this.
If the 2009 census figures or prelimnary
figures are accurate, the 9th District wll
grow. It's just a question of where it
gr ows.

SENATOR HOWELL: This is nmuch nore
informal than | expected. Thank you all
very much for discussing wwth us. Dd
anyone el se have any comments?

SENATOR EDWARDS:  Thank you for
com ng to Roanoke. Appreciate it.

SENATOR HOVELL: It's a lovely place
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(8:00 p.m)
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CERTI FI CATE
COVMONVEALTH OF VIRG NI A
COUNTY OF ROANCKE
|, Frank R Austin, Notary Public in and for
the Commonweal th of Virginia, at Large, do hereby
certify that the foregoing proceeding was by ne
reduced to machi ne shorthand, afterwards transcribed
by me by neans of conmputer, and that to the best of
my ability the foregoing is a true and correct
transcript of the proceedi ngs.
| further certify that this proceedi ng was
taken at the time and place specified in the
f oregoi ng caption
| further certify that I amnot a relative,
counsel or attorney for any party, or otherw se
interested in the outcone of this action
I N WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny
hand at Roanoke, Virginia on the 22nd day of
Novenber, 2010.

FRANK R AUSTI N
NOTARY PUBLI C

My Conmmi ssion expires Decenber 31, 2010.
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1 The following is a transcript of the 1 SENATOR DEEDS: | am Creigh Deeds
2 Redistricting Public Hearing that occurred on Cctober > fromBathCounty. Irepresentthe25th
3 27, 2010, 7:00 p.m, at Virginia Western Community 3 DiStI’iCt, which ispart of Buckingham, al
4 College, Natural Science Center, 3102 Col oni al 4 Of NEISOH, most Of - most Of Albemarle, aII
5 Avenue, S.W, Roanoke, Virginia 24015 before the 5 of Charlottw/ille, the City of BuenaVista,
6 Redistricting Subconmittee of the Senate of Virginia 6 most of Rockbridge, all of Alleghany, Clty
7 Committee on Privileges and El ections. 7 of Covi ngton and Bath.
8 It was agreed that Frank R Austin, RWR 3 SENATOR BLEVINS: | am Harry Blevins.
9 Notary Public in and for the Conmonweal th of 9 [ represent the 14th DiS[I’iCt, and that
10 Virginia, at Large, would take said public hearing in 10 comprises most of Ch%apeake, the Iargest
11 machine shorthand and transcribe the same to 11 part of Cheﬁlpeake, and asmall part of
12 typewiting by means of conputer-aided transcription. 12 Virginia Beach.
13 13 SENATOR HOWELL: Asyou can tell, we
14 SENATORS PRESENT: 14 have come from all over the state to hear
15 JANET D. HOWELL, subconmittee chair 15 what you would like us to do on
16 RALPH K. SMTH 16 redistricting, but before we start, | see
17 MARY MARGARET WHI PPLE 17 two of my friends, former members of the
18 DONALD A. MCEACHI N 18 Senate, who are here, Granger MacFarland and
19 CREIGH R DEEDS 19 Brandon Bell. Thank you both. It'sreally
20 HARRY B. BLEVINS 20 nice to see you again.
21 STEPHEN H. MARTI N 21 MR. MACFARLAND: Thank you. Niceto
22 JOHN S. EDWARDS 22 seeyou-all.
23 23 SENATOR HOWELL: | have afew
24 24 comments that 1'd like to make to sort of
Page 3 Page 5
1 SENATOR HOWELL: Good evening, 1 set the background for this evening, and
2 everyone, and thank you for coming out for 2 then we will be asking for any comments,
3 thefirst of our public hearings on 3 things you would like for us to know about
4 redistricting. | am Janet Howell. I'm the 4 what you would like us to do.
5 chairman of the Privileges and Elections 5 Thisisthefirst of four public
6 Committee of the Senate and chairman of this | 6 meetings we are going to be having this year
7 special subcommittee that is dealing with 7 before the session starts. We'll be having
8 redistricting. | represent part of Northern 8 more after we get final data. We are going
9 Virginiaup near Tysons Corner. That's how 9 al around the state to try and find out
10 people mostly can identify it. It'sareal 10 what people would like usto be doing.
11 pleasure to be down here with you. 11 The reason we are doing thisis that
12 I'm going to ask the various members 12 the Senate Privileges and Elections
13 of the committee to introduce themselves, 13 Committee is charged with being the
14 and well start here, if | may. 14 committee that deals with redistricting.
15 SENATOR WHIPPLE: | an Mary Margaret |15 The House, of course, also has a privileges
16 Whipple. | represent Senate District 31, 16 and elections committee, and they, |
17 which ismost of Arlington County, the City 17 believe, already had a meeting in this very
18 of Falls Church and a small portion of 18 Spot.
19 Eastern Fairfax County. 19 The way that redistricting worksis
20 SENATOR MCEACHIN: I'm Donald 20 that any member of the legidlator can
21 McEachin. | represent the 9th Senate 21 introduce a bill that will have a
22 District which is Eastern Richmond, 22 redistricting plan. However, that bill must
23 including the capital, East Henrico and all 23 go through the Privileges and Elections
24 of Charles City County. 24 Committee, and then it will be treated just
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1 like any other bill. It hasto passthe 1 any one district impact the other ones.
2 Senate and the House and be signed by the 2 It'sinevitable. My favorite or perhaps
3 Governor. It could be amended. It could be 3 least favorite example of thisisthat ten
4 vetoed. There are al the various 4 years ago my district, the 32nd District,
5 possibilities that goes with any bill that 5 actually was within 330 votes of the perfect
6 comes before the legislator. 6 size, but because Northern Virginia had
7 We think it's extremely important 7 picked up additional population and seats,
8 that we have public input. Wereally need 8 my district was shifted by 65,000 people. |
9 to know what you view as important 9 lost 65,000 people and | gained 65,000
10 considerations for us, for example, what 10 people. They were just different people.
11 communities of interest you would liketo 11 And | think that's just illustrative of what
12 have preserved in your region. Aswe are 12 can be happening throughout, throughout the
13 from all over the state, we might not know 13 state.
14 that if you don't tell us. 14 Asyou know, last April 1st was the
15 I'm sure you know what redistricting 15 census day when the population was
16 is, but just to give alittle background, 16 enumerated. This coming December 31st we're
17 it's redrawing the boundaries of legidative 17 expecting to get official population counts
18 districts. It's often incorrectly called 18 to the states from census, and then in
19 "reapportionment,” and that's not what we 19 February or March, and not until then, we
20 are talking about tonight. We aretalking 20 will get the detailed population data we'll
21 about the boundaries of legidative 21 use for redistricting and to draw the new
22 districts. It'sdone every ten years after 22 maps.
23 the national census, and it's designed to 23 Every state hasto redistrict, but we
24 reflect population shifts that have taken 24 haveto do it faster than anybody else.
Page 7 Page 9
1 place since the last census. We are 1 Most states will actually have about a year
2 required by the U.S. Constitution to 2 and a half to redistrict. Our time frameis
3 redistrict the U.S. Congressional Districts, 3 very, very short, because all General
4 and the Virginia Constitution requires us to 4 Assembly members are running in 2011, and we
5 do the Virginia Senate and House Districts. 5 must run in our new districts. So -- and
6 The General Assembly is responsible for both 6 any redistricting plan that we enact must go
7 the Virginia Senate and House Districts and 7 through the Department of Justice for
8 the U.S. House of Representative Districts. 8 preclearance because we are a Chapter 5
9 Localities, however, will be doing their own 9 Voting Rights Act state. The Department of
10 redistricting. We're not involved in that, 10 Justice has 60 days in which to decide if
11 in that piece. 11 our plan meets muster. So primaries, which
12 The U.S. Supreme Court has held that 12 usually would be held in June next year,
13 the Constitution requires "One Person, One 13 will be delayed. We don't yet know until
14 Vote." Districts must be as equal and 14 when. The Senate passed a bill last year
15 practicable in population. Districts with 15 that would have put forward a specific date.
16 slower growth or population loss must 16 The House did not accept that and carried
17 expand. Districts with faster growth must 17 over the bill. So at this point we do not
18 shrink. If not, population shifts would 18 know when primaries will be next year. Ten
19 dilute the vote of the personsin districts 19 years ago they were held in August. That
20 with more people. 20 gives you some idea of what it might be. It
21 Even though we do not have detailed 21 could be September. We don't know.
22 data from census yet, we do know that there 22 We have to balance many legal
23 have been signature population shiftsin 23 requirements. We haveto -- our
24 Virginiaover the last decade. Shiftsin 24 redistricting plans must comply with U.S.
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1 and Virginia constitutions, state law and 1 | see three people have signed up so far.
2 the Federal Voting Rights Act of 1965. We 2 So that'sgreat. And I'll goin order.
3 have to comply with the "One Person, One 3 Actually, thefirst oneis my husband, and
4 Vote." That'sbased onthe U.S. 4 he signed up by mistake. So two people. He
5 Constitution. The House of Representatives 5 might have advice for what Roanoke and
6 must have avery strict mathematical 6 Southwest should do, but if | were you, |
7 equality among the various districts. One 7 wouldn't listen to it.
8 state had within 13 votes, and it was turned 8 So the first one who signed up is
9 down. So for the U.S. House of 9 Molly McClennan from the L eague of Women
10 Representatives, it hasto be virtually 10 Voters. | think it says, " Southwest
11 identically sized districts. For General 11 Virginia"
12 Assembly districts, the courts have allowed 12 MS. MCCLENNAN: "Of Virginia."
13 more variance than that. But we have never 13 SENATOR HOWELL: "Of Virginia."
14 been given an exact number, so we don't know |14 MS. MCCLENNAN: Where would you like
15 what that is. 15 me to speak from, Madam Chairman?
16 Under the Virginia Constitution, our 16 SENATOR HOWELL: That'sfine.
17 districts have to be contiguous and compact, 17 MS. MCCLENNAN: Right where | am?
18 and the Voting Rights Act prohibits 18 SENATOR HOWELL: Everybody can hear
19 redistricting plans that would deny or 19 you.
20 abridge the right to vote on account of 20 MS. MCCLENNAN: Good evening, Madam
21 race, color or being in alanguage minority. 21 Chairman and members of the Senate
22 We expect both the Senate and the 22 Privileges and Election Committee. My name
23 House P & E committees will adopt some 23 isMolly McClennan. | am a member of the
24 redistricting criteriarelevant to that 24 Board of the League of Women V oters of
Page 11 Page 13
1 particular body, but that has not happened 1 Virginia. Thank you for scheduling these
2 yet. | did want to mention that there's -- 2 hearings at various locations across the
3 I'm very aware alot of interest in 3 state early in the process. We are great
4 nonpartisan redistricting commissions. The 4 supporters of transparency in government.
5 Senate passed billsfor the last three 5 Thus, we hope they're being taped and
6 years -- actually, they were Senator Deeds 6 broadcasted or at |east posted on the web so
7 bills -- on a bipartisan basis. 7 those who cannot attend physically can still
8 Overwhelmingly, three years running, the 8 participate.
9 Senate has passed those bills, and each time 9 Hearing citizen input about fairness
10 they've been rejected by the House. So 10 of the redistricting process prior to the
11 we're not going to be having nonpartisan 11 lines being drawn we hope will encourage you
12 COmMMmIssions. 12 to consider what you hear before afinal
13 We also had hoped to have joint 13 plan isvoted upon.
14 hearings. That's always been the way in the 14 As many of you know, our president,
15 past, but the House turned down our offer 15 Olga Hernandez, in the early mornings of
16 for joint hearing, which iswhy I'm sorry 16 Richmond has met with many groups on the
17 you have to be here two nights, but they 17 need to make the process of redistricting
18 said no to us. 18 more equitable. The lead belief isthat the
19 There are handouts for you. | hope 19 voters should choose their representatives
20 you have them. | know I've thrown alot of 20 and not the other way around. Thus, the
21 information very quickly at you. But there 21 practice of incumbent protection should be
22 isinformation for you to take home, and we 22 done at the ballot box and not by drawing
23 arereally hereto hear from you, and we are 23 boundaries so safe that it favors one party
24 eager to know what your adviceto usis, and 24 over the other.
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1 Commitment to the rules of the state 1 the 2007 Virginia Senate races, incumbents
2 constitution of contiguous borders, 2 of 17 of the 40 races had no opposition, and
3 compactness of districts and representation 3 only nine races were competitive. Inthe
4 in proportion to the population needs to be 4 100 House of Delegate races, 30 -- I'm
5 adhered to. Consideration of communities of 5 sorry -- 57 incumbents had no opposition and
6 interest needs to be carefully observed. 6 only 12 of 100 races were competitive.
7 Make no mistake. We are aware that 7 In 2009 legidative elections, 32 of
8 both parties have been guilty of partisan 8 the 100 members of the General Assembly
9 protection in the past. That iswhy we 9 faced no opposition and only 12 races were
10 think thereisno -- there hasto be a 10 considered competitive.
11 better way to serve the citizens of the 11 Votersfeel that their representative
12 commonwealth and get more effective 12 of the imposing party has no reason to
13 governments. 13 listen to them as constituents. The lack of
14 The League of Women Votershasalong |14 contested and competitive districts has
15 history of fighting against attacks on the 15 contributed to a decreasing voter turnout in
16 basis -- on the basic constitutional right 16 Virginia. The voter turnout for state-wide
17 to fair and equal representation guaranteed 17 and House of Delegates elections in 1997 was
18 to all citizens by the Constitution. The 18 49 and a half percent. 1n 2001 it was 46
19 L eague has worked vigorously in the 19 percent. In 2005 it was only 45 percent.
20 Commonwealth and across the country to 20 The turnout in the 2003 House of Delegates
21 secure representative redistricting plansin 21 election, when there was no state-wide
22 their states. We are seeking reforms that 22 races, was 31 percent. The 52.7 percent
23 assure that the redistricting processis 23 turnout in the 2006 heavily contested U.S.
24 nonpartisan, equitable and open. 24 senatorial election was amarked contrast to
Page 15 Page 17
1 We understand that the current 1 the 39th percent turnout in 2002 when an
2 sharing of political power in the General 2 incumbent U.S. senator was contested by only
3 Assembly provides a best opportunity for 3 two well-known candidates.
4 enactment of redistricting reform that we 4 Voter turnout for the 2009 general
5 have had in recent decades or may havein 5 election showed asimilar trend. In
6 the future, but it troubles us to hear the 6 contrast to the 74.5 percent turnout for the
7 rumors that a backroom agreement has been 7 2008 presidential election, the turnout for
8 reached between chambers to accept each 8 the 2009 Virginialegisative election was
9 other's plans, thus protecting incumbents 9 40.4 percent, which was an improvement on
10 and perpetuating more polarization of 10 the 30.2 percent turnout in the 2007
11 government. 11 eections, the lowest rate reported by the
12 The current system in Virginiaonly 12 State Board of Elections, going back to
13 encourages partisan gerrymandering which 13 1976.
14 creates seats so politically askew that the 14 One of the most significant effects
15 opposition has little chance of ever 15 of partisan gerrymandering in Virginia, as
16 exceeding the incumbent. It subvertsthe 16 elsewhere in the country, isits
17 democratic system because it allows 17 contribution to the increasing polarization
18 politicians to choose their voters rather 18 of legidative bodies. Asquotedinthe
19 than vice versa. It limits the vetting of 19 L eague of Women Voters Virginia study Does
20 new people with new ideas and solutions to 20 Y our Vote Really Count, "With little reason
21 public policy issues. Partisan 21 to fear voters, representativesincreasingly
22 gerrymandering has fairly reduced the number |22 cater to party insiders and donors rather
23 of competitive seatsin Virginia. 23 than to the political center. Bipartisan
24 In 2007 Virginia Senate races-- in 24 compromise around modern policies takes a
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1 back seat to party loyalty, resulting in 1 Committee, but I'm not a member of this
2 historic levels of polarization." 2 subcommittee. Thank you for giving me a
3 Thisis certainly true of the 3 sign and a seat up front anyway. Sol am
4 Virginia General Assembly of recent years. 4 here to welcome all of you to my part of the
5 The gerrymandering districts established in 5 commonwealth. It's so good to have you. |
6 the 2001 redistricting have resulted in the 6 thank you for choosing to have your kickoff
7 election of candidates who are unwilling to 7 meeting here. | represent Roanoke County,
8 compromise on legislation, the budget 8 Montgomery County, the City of Salem, the
9 transportation issues and funding. We are 9 City of Radford and Botetourt County. |
10 encouraged that you are listening early 10 thank all of you for coming out.
11 before you get the revealing consensus 11 SENATOR HOWELL: Thank you. The next
12 numbers. We ask that you work with the 12 person who signed up is Charles Jordan. He
13 House in good faith and in transparent ways 13 just walked out.
14 as you work through the process. Input 14 Is there anyone else who would like
15 should and can be taken by the Web, should 15 to make comments? Yes, sir. Well, welll
16 be posted so that the public can see the 16 give him afew minutes. | think they're
17 process. More hearings should be scheduled 17 trying to find Mr. -- you don't see him?
18 once the legidation is drafted and maps are 18 Okay. Isthere anyone else?
19 proposed. 19 MS. CREASY: Yes. It seemsto me--
20 Virginiais the cradle of democracy 20 SENATOR HOWELL: I'm sorry. If you
21 in the United States. Let'sagain bea 21 would give your name.
22 beacon of good government and show the 22 MS. CREASY: Barbara Creasy. | think
23 nation that by having a better system we can 23 the reason I'm hereis | was bothered ten
24 and will have better government for and by 24 years ago. It doesn't make rational sense.
Page 19 Page 21
1 the people when they truly have avoice. 1 | like what the lady from the league said.
2 SENATOR HOWELL.: Inthe beginningyou | 2 That's what we want. We want something
3 mentioned that you would like it on the Web. 3 rational. What -- | guess that's what I'm
4 | meant to say that we have Mr. Austin here, 4 saying, iswe realy need the nonpartisan
5 who's a court reporter, and everything 5 idea, please.
6 that's said will be going up on the Web. 6 SENATOR HOWELL: Thank you. Anyone
7 Thank you. 7 else?
8 We have two more members who have 8 SENATOR MARTIN: May | ask aquestion
9 joined us, Senator Steve Martin and Senator 9 because | camein alittlelate. Did
10 Ralph Smith, and | would just like to ask 10 you-all go over, for informational purpose,
11 them to describe their districts, or 11 let them know the requirements with regards
12 geographically their districts. 12 to redistricting and all that sort of thing?
13 SENATOR MARTIN: | could do thelines |13 SENATOR HOWELL: Yes, wedid. Yeah,
14 for you if you want. 14 wedid.
15 | represent the 11th Senate District, 15 MS. CREASY: Do you anticipate
16 which is most of the County of Chesterfield 16 problems? |sthis going to be difficult to
17 and all the City of Colonial Heights. | 17 get through?
18 previously chaired the Privileges and 18 SENATOR HOWELL: You know, | am very
19 Elections Committee back afew yearsago. | |19 concerned about our tight time frame. That
20 have been through a couple of redistrictings 20 bothers me alot, because we get the data
21 aready, onein the House and then onein 21 that we need -- census says we will be the
22 the Senate. Thiswill be my third. 22 first state to get the data, but it might be
23 SENATOR SMITH: Well, thank you. | 23 February. It could be early March. We have
24 am amember of the Privileges and Elections |24 to get the districts -- the -- the
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1 legislation passed in time to go to the 1 as chairman is just how we get the job done
2 Department of Justice, which has, they said 2 intime,
3 now, 60 days, and then we have to have 3 SENATOR MARTIN: Madam Chairman, if |
4 running districts so people have time to, 4 might comment, when you submit your
5 you know, to become candidatestorunandso | 5 suggestionsto us, | mean, it'sreally easy
6 on. So thistime frame bothers me. 6 to set, draw linesin your area as to what
7 SENATOR MARTIN: And this-- push it 7 you'd like for them to be, like asif it can
8 back, and for the voters, they might, in 8 be done in avacuum, but it's got to be done
9 fact, appreciate the fact that they have 9 in relationship to the districts around us.
10 shorter campaigns. Y ou shouldn't expect the |10 And when we get to West Virginia, we can't
11 filing deadlines until mid August. Then the 11 go any further. That'sgoingto beit. So
12 nomination is not until September, which 12 things amost have to really start in the
13 crunches up the, at best, maybe a general 13 corner and work in to really get it to work,
14 election, like no more than seven weeks at 14 and where we are when we get in the middle
15 the most. And so that part of it, you know, 15 iswhere we are when we get in the middle.
16 the public will appreciate. But getting it 16 Then you have -- you do some adjusting,
17 through the Justice Department, got some 17 sizing around.
18 problems, have them react to it, what 18 But beyond the constitutional
19 happens then? These are -- 19 requirements of contiguity compactness and
20 MS. CREASY: Areyou going to use 20 communities of interest, with compactness, |
21 computer models at all? 21 don't know that we have done -- well,
22 SENATOR HOWELL: Oh, yes. 22 anyway, both parties, you can stretch that.
23 SENATOR MARTIN: Been doing that for |23 But we also have the issue of concerns
24 the last 20 years. 24 for -- for the Justice Department that's
Page 23 Page 25
1 SENATOR HOWELL: They have become | 1 going to certainly weigh in on that and give
2 very sophisticated. The Division of 2 us guidance with regard to minority
3 Legidative Servicesis purchasing some of 3 interests and that sort of thing. So the
4 these programs for us. They are being -- we 4 guestion is how far, to what extent do you
5 have some of them here. They're being 5 go to create a black influence district or a
6 trained on how to do it. In addition, we 6 black, you know, mgjority district. And we
7 are expecting alot of participation, and 7 have had casesin the past on that.
8 I'm certainly encouraging it from the -- 8 | was looking yesterday, as a matter
9 from the public with sending your own plans 9 of fact, Madam Chairman, at the 3rd
10 into usfor usto look at. 10 Congressional District, and that not only
11 My theory is, the more plans we have 11 crosses bodies of water. It actually stops
12 to look at, the better job we are going to 12 on abody of water and skips land and uses
13 be able to do, because each of them will 13 the river bottom to go up the river some
14 have perhaps something that nobody else 14 miles before it picks back up. And so
15 thought of, but -- and there is a professor 15 it's-- it, you know, how far do you go, and
16 at George Mason University -- hisname, | 16 that's already going through -- and that's
17 think, isMike McDonald -- who is putting 17 not being done as an attack.
18 out afree program that anybody can use, and |18 SENATOR MCEACHIN: Wdll, I'm just
19 then it can -- you can forward to us then 19 going to make acomment. To single out the
20 whatever your plan isfor usto consider. 20 3rd Congressional District --
21 So | think it's going to be the most open 21 SENATOR MARTIN: | wasn't trying to
22 process ever, just because technology is 22 do that.
23 going to make it much more transparent and 23 SENATOR MCEACHIN: I'm going to still
24 easy for peopleto participate. My concern 24 make my comment. To single out the 3rd
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1 Congressional District isabit unfair 1 to the extent practical and reasonable, keep
2 because there are a number of districts that 2 districts contiguous for pedestrians,
3 leapfrog over, over boundaries. 3 vehicular traffic and mass transit, run
4 | was once -- | used to represent the 4 electora district boundaries along county
5 74th House District, and during the last 5 lines, respect counties and cities and
6 redistricting, they actually gave me a piece 6 boroughs and magisterial districts and
7 of Prince George County that was popul ated 7 neighborhoods to the extent possible, and
8 by no -- by rabbits and squirrels and no 8 where they have to be divided, give some
9 one. So there are plenty of examples that 9 preference to natural boundaries such as
10 one can use, and there are lots of wayswe 10 rivers, mountain ridges, railroads,
11 can do it better. 11 highways, parkland and forest.
12 SENATOR MARTIN: And | did not mean |12 Let'ssee. Please avoid dividing
13 -- Madam Chairman, the only reason | grabbed |13 neighbors, including South Roanoke and
14 that was because | happened to be looking at 14 Lindenwood. And please count -- to the
15 that one yesterday and | said, "Boy." But 15 extent possible, count institutional
16 yes, absolutely. That'sthereason | said 16 populations in people's home communities
17 both parties, we have just stretched some 17 where they, their families and their
18 thingsjust out there in order to try to 18 neighbors vote. Keep districts compact
19 adhere to what the Justice Department tells 19 rather than elongated or contorted. Provide
20 uswe need to do. So all of those things 20 each district anumber and a name, based on
21 have got to be taken into account whenwedo |21 -- aname based on the character,
22 it. 22 community's landmarks contained in the
23 So back to the original part of my 23 district.
24 comment, when you give us some 24 Please avoid pitfalls that tend to
Page 27 Page 29
1 recommendations specific for any particular 1 thwart democracy. That would be preserving
2 area, then we -- it's not going to be able 2 current districts so they would put us
3 to be done in avacuum is my point. It's 3 against population shifts, asthey have had
4 got to be done with al those other things 4 their day and must gave way to new districts
5 and considerations. 5 that are now deserving. Y ou know, do not
6 SENATOR HOWELL: Wdll, let's see. 6 protect incumbent legislatives with eroding
7 Mr. Jordan, are you back? Mr. Jordan, did 7 bases of support astheir artificial tenure
8 you want to make some comments? Thank you. | 8 will only delay the passage of innovative
9 MR. JORDAN: Yes. Let'ssee. | just 9 legislation that we need in a changing
10 found out about this hearing recently, so | 10 world.
11 hadn't had a chance to finalize my comments, |11 Please do not treat thisasa
12 and | hope to be able to submit them later 12 partisan game, because that's not what
13 in the entirety. 13 matters to us as voters. We have put our
14 SENATOR HOWELL: Absolutely. 14 interest in people, not parties, and we mix
15 MR. JORDAN: What I'd like to say, 15 them on our local governments and, you know,
16 first of al, | would recommend that 16 they don't align along the traditional party
17 the committees follow some of the guidelines |17 lines.
18 and the standards that have been established 18 Please keep the process open, invite,
19 over the years by -- by various good 19 facilitate and consider public input
20 government groups and by the courts and so 20 throughout the process, invite public
21 on, first of al, the respective 21 comment on maps submitted by the public,
22 communities, communities of interest, 22 provide full public report, and if it
23 whether ethic, environmental, demographic or |23 becomes clear that preference voting is off
24 economic, keep planning districts together 24 in one of the districts, or that changesin
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1 the local government boundaries or the state 1 saying one of the main things | would like
2 line would result in better representation, 2 to see happen in this processisthat the
3 please report those facts, because although 3 processisfair, but also -- but the main
4 some -- there is some interests that may not 4 thing is some bipartisanship.
5 want to see the information, the public 5 Sometimes for some light reading I'll
6 deserves to know about any opportunity to 6 go back and go over the Federalist Papers
7 improve government. 7 and see some of the back and forth that
8 When you encounter problems, ask for 8 happened during the time when they were
9 help. I'll gladly provide assistance, and 9 writing those documents and some of the
10 I'm sure there are many other experienced 10 major issues that they had to confront, not
11 volunteers who can be lined up across the 11 unlike what we have to confront today, and
12 state. 12 I'm always struck by the civility and the
13 | suggest you verify information 13 tone that was taken between people that
14 because with the -- with the best available 14 vehemently disagreed with each other on
15 sources. For example, this book, 15 policy positions. It was phenomenal, the
16 Redistricting Law 2010, by the National 16 courteousness and the ability that they had
17 Conference of State Legislators, says on 17 to get along and to carry out public
18 page 84 that Fairfax City has bailed out of 18 businessin away that engendered confidence
19 Section 4 of the Vating Rights Act, but on 19 from the public in that process, and then
20 page 97 it says Fairfax County has bailed 20 the public hearing it out.
21 out. Sol can't tell whether it'sthe city 21 So | would ask if -- if you guys
22 or the county. And thereis no source or 22 could find away to have some
23 date provided in the document to document 23 bipartisanship. | know that behind closed
24 these actions, and it is difficult to tell 24 doors you are prabably like great pals and,
Page 31 Page 33
1 which of either of locality is still subject 1 you know, everything is fun, and by the time
2 to federal preclearance. 2 it getsto the press, there'sawar going
3 So | thank you for this opportunity, 3 on. But it's having an effect throughout
4 and | hope to submit my commentsin a better 4 the commonwealth, need | say throughout the
5 arrangement at a future time. Thank you. 5 country, and | would just say to each of
6 SENATOR HOWELL: Thank you very much, | 6 you, because you are all fine, distinguished
7 and we are eager to receivethem. We are 7 people who took an oath to protect and to
8 eager to receive your expanded comments. 8 serve and do the best for the commonwealth
9 MR. JORDAN: Thank you. 9 and for the country, and | would ask each of
10 SENATOR HOWELL: Doit by Internet if |10 you during those heated moments, when you
11 you would like. Okay. 11 are really getting down to the nuts and
12 Sir, are you ready? 12 bolts of putting this together, to try to
13 MR. COOPER: Yes. 13 keep that in mind.
14 SENATOR HOWELL.: If you would 14 | will go on to say that the process
15 identify yourself. 15 really does need to berational. |1 mean,
16 MR. COOPER: My nameis Carl Cooper, |16 over the last three, four, three, four times
17 Roanoke City. | would like to begin by 17 of this redistricting process, | mean, it's
18 saying hello to Senator Smith, former mayor 18 amost like awinner-take-al, and the party
19 of Roanoke City. It'sgood to seeyou, Sir. 19 in power isthe bully, and they get to do
20 | too also only recently sort of was 20 pretty much what they want, draw it the way
21 noticed of this meeting, and | will be 21 they want, and it's like, "Oh, well, too
22 revising and expanding my comments and 22 bad, minority party. We are going to do it
23 submitting them, too. 23 the way that we want to."
24 | guess | would like to begin by 24 Weéll, | for one, and most citizens,
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1 don't want it that way. | mean, because as 1 color livesin one quadrant of the city. So
2 asociety, as a state, as a country, we 2 if during this process somehow that was
3 don't operate that way. That's not how we 3 gerrymandered in a certain way, okay, that
4 operate. When we have to do thingsout in 4 would be voting strength. So | would ask
5 the community, we rely on each other no 5 the committee to be aware of those types of
6 matter what the situation is, and we expect 6 situations and ensure that the -- the voting
7 the same thing from the legislator, for 7 strength -- and alot of the voting strength
8 you-all to rely on each other, and so enough 8 has built up over decades, okay -- that
9 there. 9 voting strength be preserved, because even
10 So | would also ask that you guys do 10 where there is voting strength, especially
11 as much as you can to limit the -- limit 11 with populations of color and what have you,
12 outside influences on the process. | 12 itis-- the -- it does not approach the
13 believe that we know that, okay, Virginiais 13 majority voting strength, and so that needs
14 going first. We know that the presidential 14 to be kept in mind also.
15 elections are coming up. We know that 15 The -- | agree that open access -- |
16 Virginiagetslooked at in a number of ways 16 applaud the -- the legidlator and this
17 for anumber of reasons that has national 17 committee for having these meetings. |
18 implications. And | would just ask each of 18 think in ten years -- who knows what will
19 you and ask your colleagues also to try to, 19 happen by then, but more advertising, a
20 you know, keep those outside influences on 20 little earlier and more places, and in more
21 our process, on our commonwealth process, 21 places, the more -- more minority press, to
22 and the things that are best for our 22 reach more people.
23 commonwealth, keep them at bay, okay, and 23 Also, as this process goes forward,
24 have everyone thinking about what is best 24 making sure that our Latino brothers and
Page 35 Page 37
1 for the commonwealth. 1 sisters and their populations also know
2 And when we talk about what's best, 2 about this process. And thereinasois
3 one of the things that | would definitely 3 acommunity that needs to be looked at
4 want to see and ask you to ensure that 4 and -- and kept in mind, because they have
5 communities of interest and the senator -- 5 significant challenges, somewhat like the
6 Senator Maxwell? 6 African American challenges, but they have
7 SENATOR MARTIN: Martin. 7 some uniquely different ones that impact on
8 MR. COOPER: Senator Martin brought 8 redistricting and revision. In my revision
9 up as an example black population and what 9 and extension of remarks I'll get moreinto
10 have you, and | would totally agree. | 10 that.
11 mean, that's something that needs to be 11 So with that, that's all | have. And
12 looked at, protected. There'saso some 12 | just thank you for listening, and |
13 mention about the bailouts, certain 13 appreciate you guys being here.
14 localities that opted out of not the whole 14 SENATOR HOWELL: Thank you. Those
15 Civil Rights Act, but that section on -- of 15 were very helpful comments.
16 poling movements. So | would ask that we 16 MR. COOPER: Thank you.
17 keep in mind -- that we keep in mind the -- 17 SENATOR HOWELL: Our colleague,
18 the unique historical challenges of 18 Senator John Edwards, has arrived.
19 populations of color in this commonwealth. 19 Thank you for coming. I'm surprised
20 For instance, in Roanoke City, which 20 you are here. | heard you had your own
21 has been characterized in the major press as 21 meeting tonight on trains.
22 the most segregated city in the South, 22 SENATOR EDWARDS: | did. | didn't
23 roughly 80 percent, 85 percent, some would 23 have this -- you know, we overlapped. | had
24 even say 90 percent, of the population of 24 atown meeting on rail passenger
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1 transportation in Western Virginia, the 1 He had the case, that you may recall,
2 Department of Rail and Transportation. We 2 that occurred down in Eastern Virginia, and
3 had a very good meeting, had a huge crowd. 3 I think it would be helpful to you as you
4 | apologize for being late. | was going to 4 approach that one component of the overall
5 say thisisso far from where| live. 5 job. That wasall | had to say.
6 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Did youwak? | 6 SENATOR HOWELL: Great. Thank you.
7 SENATOR EDWARDS: | live about ahalf | 7 Thank you. Okay. Anyone else? Do you have
8 amilefrom here. 8 anything?
9 SENATOR SMITH: Madam Chair, if I may | 9 MR. BELL: | guess everybody here,
10 comment. All the people that should have 10 those that are here are all concerned about
11 been here were over at John's. It wasa 11 losing representation. It'sin the back of
12 tremendous crowd, alot of energy to bring 12 al of our minds. But do you have anything
13 passenger rail home from Lynchburg on to 13 preliminarily about numbers as far as
14 Roanoke. It tiesinto Amtrak. But you did 14 digtricts -- one that hasn't been mentioned
15 agood, good job with that. 15 to the press, are we expected to -- to add
16 And | must say the House had its 16 or -- to either add a congressional seat or
17 kickoff hearing right herein this same 17 lose a congressional seat? Is either of
18 room. There were not nearly as many 18 that -- are the numbers shifting state-wide
19 members, committee members from the House. |19 now?
20 So that's -- that's afeather in this 20 SENATOR HOWELL: Let merefer you to
21 senate's cap. You have -- you have alot 21 Mr. Cotter from the Legidative Servicesif
22 more people here. Unfortunately, we don't 22 you don't mind.
23 have alarger crowd out here to greet you, 23 MR. COTTER: Interms of the U.S.
24 but thanks for showing up. 24 Congress, based on what has been said so
Page 39 Page 41
1 SENATOR HOWELL: Thank you. Weare | 1 far, which isnot final, so it could change,
2 doing everything we can think of. And thank 2 but we are supposed -- Virginiais expected
3 you for your, Mr. Cooper, for your 3 to stay at 11 seats. And in terms of
4 additional comments on other groups to 4 General Assembly districts, there are some
5 reach. We know at least 60,000 e-mails have 5 datafor 2009 estimates that are actually up
6 gone out about these meetings, at least 6 on the redistricting website, if you look at
7 60,000, and we keep trying to add on the 7 the Drawing the Line, the first for Drawing
8 list. Now, that's state-wide. | mean, it 8 the Line which isup on the Virginia
9 wasn't 60,000 people here, but at |east 9 redistricting website, it has some
10 60,000 people who've sent e-mails about our 10 preliminary numbers about where the
11 hearings. We've notified the press. It's 11 districts currently are and how -- how in
12 up on the General Assembly'swebsite, and if |12 deviation they are with the population
13 you have any other suggestions, especially 13 numbers.
14 if they're free or nearly free, let us know. 14 MR. BELL: Just an average size, do
15 Does anyone el se have comments? Yes. 15 you know an average size, Senate and the
16 MR. MACFARLAND: Madam chairman, one |16 House, what they need to increase by?
17 thing that might help the committeewould be |17 MR. COTTER: | can you tell you the
18 if the staff would supply it with Judge 18 average size, what -- that -- based on
19 Richard C. Pattisall's brief that he wrote, 19 preliminary numbers, what they're -- what
20 now about nine, eight or nine years ago, 20 theideal is, what equality is. | can give
21 that covers primarily contiguousness and 21 you that. But again, thisis based on
22 compactness. It'svery well written. It 22 estimated 2009. So these numbers will end
23 won't take you long to read, and frankly, 23 up changing for Senate districtsif the
24 it'sagood primmer. 24 ideal population is 197,277. For
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1 congressional districts, itsideal 1 on the 2009 numbers -- we are about half a

2 population is 717,370, and for House of 2 district short from 29 west, and they are a

3 Delegates district, theideal districtis 3 little bit more than half adistrict short

4 78,911, and that's 2009 estimates. So when 4 than South Hampton Roads. The districts are

5 we actually get the real numbers, that's 5 going to haveto get larger to accommodate

6 going to change somewhat, but that'swhat we | 6 population growth in Northern Virginia.

7 have right now. 7 That's just afact of life.

8 MR. BELL: So roughly 20th Senate 8 Now, does that mean -- you know what,

9 District and eight -- eight -- I'm just 9 it doesn't look like we should lose any more
10 doing the math in my head, how much bigger |10 than South Hampton Roads should lose, but
11 they are. | guess the idea of how many 11 the numbers, we won't get preliminary
12 seats, kind of calculate how many seatsin 12 numbers from the Census Bureau until the 1st
13 the western part are considered likely to 13 of February. So anyone that is fooling with
14 shift to the glorious parts of Northern 14 maps right now is just fooling.

15 Virginia. That goes through alot of 15 SENATOR HOWELL: Thank you for saying

16 peopl€e's heads, what's going to happen aswe |16 that, because I'm concerned. | hear, you

17 go long-term in the western part of the 17 know, rumors that some people think that we

18 state in concerns of representation. | 18 have already set the districts. We don't

19 mean, Senator Deeds has alot of thought. 19 even have the basic numbersyet. We have

20 SENATOR DEEDS: If you look at what's |20 not set any districts. What you seein the

21 on the web, we are down alittle bit in 21 Drawing the Line, and it's on the -- on the

22 Southwest Virginia. From basically my area |22 Web, isthe best that we have got, and we

23 west, we are down about half adistrict. In 23 know it's inaccurate.

24 South Hampton Roads they are down alittle 24 MR. MACFARLAND: My five-year-old
Page 43 Page 45

1 bit more than ahalf adistrict. And Mark 1 daughter with crayons would be able to

2 Herring and Chuck Colgan up in Prince 2 volunteer for the job.

3 William County, Loudoun County, are realy 3 SENATOR HOWELL: She may have the

4 represent -- they represent almost, between 4 best plan.

5 the two of them, they represent almost four 5 Anyone else? Yes, Sir.

6 districts. The population isthree and a 6 MR. WEBB: There's -- there has been

7 half, four people. So there's going -- 7 the talk about depopulation --

8 we're going to have to find away to get a 8 SENATOR HOWELL: I'm sorry. Could

9 district up there, anew district up there. 9 you identify yourself?

10 We are just going to haveto -- the 10 MR. WEBB: My name is Andrew Webb. |
11 districts are going to get larger al over 11 actually work here at this school. That's
12 the state. 12 how | found out about this. | got off work
13 SENATOR MARTIN: May | ask aquestion |13 at 7:00.

14 to make sure you are -- the territory you 14 But there's been talk about, in

15 are talking about, from basically your area, 15 certain corners, about what's going to

16 when you say west, you mean south to the -- 16 happen to the 9th District asfar asits

17 SENATOR DEEDS: | mean from 29 west |17 need to incorporate new areas due to a

18 to the -- to Southwest Virginia. 18 certain amount of population retraction in
19 SENATOR MARTIN: And all theway -- |19 that area. Of coursethat'savery -- with
20 and south to -- that leaves you about a 20 it being a very unique district, unique

21 half -- 21 culture -- need to put it bluntly. There --
22 SENATOR DEEDS: | think -- asyou 22 there is concern that as Northern Virginia
23 look at the preliminary numbersfrom 2009 -- |23 grows less and less, areathat's

24 thisisal speculation because it's based 24 depopulating like that, will get less and
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1 less representation. 1 to come. Thank you all very much for
2 What can be done or is being done to 2 spending the evening with us.
3 preserve the uniqueness of the district like 3
4 that, and at the sametime | would liketo 4 (8:00 p.m.)
5 say that whatever gets doneis donein the 5
6 best interest of that district, and not 6
7 based on the insistences of presumptive 7
8 congressional candidates who continue to 8
9 insist Salem won't be in the Sth, but -- 9
10 SENATOR HOWELL: The courts are very, |10
11 very clear. The districts have to bethe 11
12 same size. 12
13 SENATOR MARTIN: Population. 13
14 SENATOR HOWELL: Excuseme. The 14
15 population must be the same. They are not 15
16 permitting variance at the congressional 16
17 level. It's conceivable that you could -- 17
18 if you tried -- if you are not exactly, and 18
19 | mean to the person, the same size, you are 19
20 going to bein court. Youmay end upin 20
21 court anyway, but the courts have been very 21
22 clear that it is only in very unusual 22
23 circumstances would they allow afew or 23
24 maybe even afew hundred peoplein a 24
Page 47 Page 49
1 variation between congressional districts. 1 CERTIFLCATE
2 They have said that over and over in court. 2 COWCWEALTH OF VIRGIN A
3 So whatever the numbers turn out, 3 COUNTY OF ROANCKE
4 that isgoing to drive how much Iarger the 4 I, Frank R Austin, Notary Public in and for
5 oth District will be. NOW, you know, the 5 the Commonweal th of Virginia, at Large, do hereby
6 converse of that is people oftenin the -- 6 certify that the foregoing proceeding was by ne
7 in the areas with rapidly growing 7 reduced to machine shorthand, afterwards transcribed
8 pOpU| ations are underrepresented. So that's 8 by ne by neans of conmputer, and that to the best of
9 Whythecourtsaresteppinginandwillstep 9 ny ability the foregoing is a true and correct
10 in. 10 transcript of the proceedings.
11 SENATOR DEEDS: And, Madam Chair, 11 | further certify that this proceedi ng was
12 read Baker aga| nst Carr, 1964 Supreme Court 12 taken at the tinme and place specified in the
13 case, that's the foundation of all of this. 13 foregoing caption.
14 If the 2009 census figures or preliminary 14 | further certify that | amnot a relative,
15 figures are accurate, the 9th District will 15 counsel or attorney for any party, or otherw se
16 grow. It'sjust a question of where it 16 interested in the outcome of this action.
17 grows. 17 IN WTNESS WHERECF, | have hereunto set ny
18 SENATOR HOWELL: Thisismuch more |18 hand at Roanoke, Virginia on the 22nd day of
19 informal than | expected. Thank you all 19 Novenber, 2010.
20 very much for discussing with us. Did 20
21 anyone el se have any comments? 21
22 SENATOR EDWARDS: Thank you for 22 FRANK R AUSTI N
23 coming to Roanoke. Appreciateit. 23 o _
24 SENATOR HOWELL: Itsalovely place |24 ¥ M ssion expires Decenber 31, 2010
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The followng is a transcript of the
Redi stricting Public Hearing that occurred on October
27, 2010, 7:00 p.m, at Virginia Western Community
Col | ege, Natural Science Center, 3102 Col oni al
Avenue, S.W, Roanoke, Virginia 24015 before the
Redi stricting Subconmttee of the Senate of Virginia
Commttee on Privileges and El ecti ons.

It was agreed that Frank R Austin, RWVR
Notary Public in and for the Commonweal t h of
Virginia, at Large, would take said public hearing in
machi ne shorthand and transcribe the sane to

typewiting by neans of conputer-aided transcription.
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JANET D. HOWELL, subcommittee chair
RALPH K. SM TH
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SENATOR HONELL: (Good eveni ng,
everyone, and thank you for com ng out for
the first of our public hearings on
redistricting. | amJanet Howell. [|I'mthe
chai rman of the Privileges and El ections
Comm ttee of the Senate and chairman of this
special subcommttee that is dealing wth
redistricting. | represent part of Northern
Virginia up near Tysons Corner. That's how
people nostly can identify it. |It's a real
pl easure to be down here with you.

I'"mgoing to ask the various nenbers

of the commttee to i ntroduce thensel ves,

and we'll start here, if | may.
SENATOR VWH PPLE: | am Mary Mar gar et
Whi pple. | represent Senate District 31,

which is nost of Arlington County, the City
of Falls Church and a snall portion of
Eastern Fairfax County.

SENATOR MCEACHI N: I m Donal d
McEachin. | represent the 9th Senate
District which is Eastern R chnond,

i ncluding the capital, East Henrico and all

of Charles Cty County.
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SENATOR DEEDS: | am Crei gh Deeds
fromBath County. | represent the 25th
District, which is part of Bucki ngham all
of Nel son, nost of -- nost of Al benmarle, all
of Charlottesville, the City of Buena Vista,
nost of Rockbridge, all of Alleghany, Cty
of Covi ngton and Bat h.

SENATOR BLEVINS: | am Harry Bl evins.
| represent the 14th District, and that
conpri ses nost of Chesapeake, the | argest
part of Chesapeake, and a snall part of
Vi rgi ni a Beach

SENATOR HONELL: As you can tell, we
have conme fromall over the state to hear
what you would like us to do on
redi stricting, but before we start, | see
two of ny friends, former menbers of the
Senate, who are here, G anger MacFarl and and
Brandon Bell. Thank you both. It's really
nice to see you again.

MR. MACFARLAND: Thank you. N ce to
see you-all

SENATOR HONELL: | have a few

comments that 1'd i ke to nmake to sort of
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set the background for this evening, and
then we wll be asking for any comments,

t hings you would |i ke for us to know about
what you would like us to do.

This is the first of four public
nmeetings we are going to be having this year
before the session starts. W'I|| be having
nore after we get final data. W are going
all around the state to try and find out
what people would lIi ke us to be doing.

The reason we are doing this is that
the Senate Privileges and El ections
Conmmttee is charged wth being the
conmmttee that deals with redistricting.
The House, of course, also has a privil eges
and el ections conmttee, and they, I
bel i eve, already had a neeting in this very
spot .

The way that redistricting works is
that any nenber of the | egislator can
introduce a bill that will have a
redi stricting plan. However, that bill nust
go through the Privileges and El ecti ons

Commttee, and then it wll be treated just
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li ke any other bill. It has to pass the
Senate and the House and be signed by the
Governor. It could be anended. It could be
vetoed. There are all the various
possibilities that goes with any bill that
cones before the | egislator

W think it's extrenely inportant
that we have public input. W really need
to know what you vi ew as i nportant
consi derations for us, for exanple, what
communities of interest you would like to
have preserved in your region. As we are
fromall over the state, we m ght not know
that if you don't tell us.

" m sure you know what redistricting
is, but just to give a little background,
it's redrawi ng the boundaries of |egislative
districts. |It's often incorrectly call ed
"reapportionnent,” and that's not what we
are tal king about tonight. W are talking
about the boundaries of |egislative
districts. 1It's done every ten years after
the national census, and it's designed to

refl ect population shifts that have taken
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pl ace since the |last census. W are
required by the U S. Constitution to
redistrict the U S. Congressional Districts,
and the Virginia Constitution requires us to
do the Virginia Senate and House Districts.
The General Assenbly is responsible for both
the Virginia Senate and House Districts and
the U S. House of Representative Districts.
Localities, however, will be doing their own
redistricting. W're not involved in that,
in that piece.

The U.S. Suprene Court has held that
the Constitution requires "One Person, One
Vote." Districts nust be as equal and
practicable in population. D stricts with
sl ower growt h or popul ation | oss nust
expand. Districts with faster growth nust
shrink. [If not, population shifts would
dilute the vote of the persons in districts
with nore peopl e.

Even t hough we do not have detail ed
data from census yet, we do know that there
have been signature popul ation shifts in

Virginia over the | ast decade. Shifts in
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any one district inpact the other ones.

It's inevitable. M favorite or perhaps

| east favorite exanple of this is that ten
years ago ny district, the 32nd District,
actually was within 330 votes of the perfect
size, but because Northern Virginia had

pi cked up additional popul ation and seats,
ny district was shifted by 65, 000 people. |
| ost 65, 000 people and | gai ned 65, 000
people. They were just different people.
And | think that's just illustrative of what
can be happeni ng t hroughout, throughout the
st at e.

As you know, l|last April 1st was the
census day when the popul ati on was
enumrerated. This com ng Decenber 31st we're
expecting to get official population counts
to the states fromcensus, and then in
February or March, and not until then, we
wll get the detail ed popul ati on data we'l |
use for redistricting and to draw the new
maps.

Every state has to redistrict, but we

have to do it faster than anybody el se.
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Most states wll actually have about a year
and a half to redistrict. Qur tinme franme is
very, very short, because all General
Assenbly nenbers are running in 2011, and we
must run in our new districts. So -- and
any redistricting plan that we enact nust go
t hrough the Departnment of Justice for
precl earance because we are a Chapter 5
Voting R ghts Act state. The Departnent of
Justice has 60 days in which to decide if
our plan neets nuster. So primaries, which
usually would be held in June next year,
will be delayed. W don't yet know until
when. The Senate passed a bill |ast year
t hat woul d have put forward a specific date.
The House did not accept that and carried
over the bill. So at this point we do not
know when primaries will be next year. Ten
years ago they were held in August. That
gives you sone idea of what it mght be. It
coul d be Septenber. W don't know.

We have to bal ance nmany | ega
requi rements. We have to -- our

redi stricting plans nust conply wwth U S.
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and Virginia constitutions, state | aw and
the Federal Voting Rights Act of 1965. W
have to conmply with the "One Person, One
Vote." That's based on the U S
Constitution. The House of Representatives
must have a very strict nmat hemati cal

equal ity anong the various districts. One
state had wwthin 13 votes, and it was turned
down. So for the U S. House of
Representatives, it has to be virtually
identically sized districts. For GCeneral
Assenbly districts, the courts have all owed
nore variance than that. But we have never
been gi ven an exact nunber, so we don't know
what that is.

Under the Virginia Constitution, our
districts have to be conti guous and conpact,
and the Voting Rights Act prohibits
redi stricting plans that would deny or
abridge the right to vote on account of
race, color or being in a |l anguage mnority.

We expect both the Senate and the
House P & E commttees will adopt sone

redistricting criteria relevant to that
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particul ar body, but that has not happened
yet. | did want to nention that there's --
I'mvery aware a lot of interest in
nonpartisan redistricting comm ssions. The
Senate passed bills for the last three
years -- actually, they were Senator Deeds’
bills -- on a bipartisan basis.
Overwhel m ngly, three years running, the
Senat e has passed those bills, and each tine
t hey' ve been rejected by the House. So
we're not going to be having nonpartisan
conmi Ssi ons.

W al so had hoped to have joint
hearings. That's always been the way in the
past, but the House turned down our offer
for joint hearing, which is why I'msorry
you have to be here two nights, but they
said no to us.

There are handouts for you. | hope
you have them | know I've thrown a | ot of
information very quickly at you. But there
is informati on for you to take hone, and we
are really here to hear fromyou, and we are

eager to know what your advice to us is, and
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| see three people have signed up so far.
So that's great. And I'lIl go in order.
Actually, the first one is ny husband, and
he signed up by m stake. So two people. He
m ght have advice for what Roanoke and
Sout hwest should do, but if | were you, |
wouldn't listen to it.

So the first one who signed up is
Mol ly McC ennan fromthe League of Whnen
Voters. | think it says, "Southwest
Virginia."

M5. MCCLENNAN. "OF Virginia."

SENATOR HOWELL: "OF Virginia."

M5. MCCLENNAN: \Where would you |1 ke
nme to speak from Madam Chairnan?

SENATOR HOWNELL: That's fi ne.

M5. MCCLENNAN: Ri ght where | anf

SENATOR HONELL: Everybody can hear
you.

M5. MCCLENNAN:. Good eveni ng, Madam
Chai rman and nenbers of the Senate
Privileges and El ection Commttee. M nane
is Molly Mcd ennan. | am a nenber of the

Board of the League of Whnen Voters of
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Virginia. Thank you for scheduling these
hearings at various |ocations across the
state early in the process. W are great
supporters of transparency in government.
Thus, we hope they're being taped and
broadcasted or at | east posted on the web so
t hose who cannot attend physically can still
parti ci pate.

Hearing citizen input about fairness
of the redistricting process prior to the
| i nes being drawn we hope wi |l encourage you
to consi der what you hear before a final
plan i s voted upon.

As many of you know, our president,
d ga Hernandez, in the early nornings of
Ri chnmond has net with nmany groups on the
need to make the process of redistricting
nore equitable. The lead belief is that the
voters shoul d choose their representatives
and not the other way around. Thus, the
practice of incunbent protection should be
done at the ball ot box and not by draw ng
boundaries so safe that it favors one party

over the other.
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Commtnment to the rules of the state
constitution of contiguous borders,
conpact ness of districts and representation
in proportion to the popul ati on needs to be
adhered to. Consideration of communities of
Interest needs to be carefully observed.

Make no m stake. W are aware that
bot h parties have been guilty of partisan
protection in the past. That is why we
think there is no -- there has to be a
better way to serve the citizens of the
conmonweal th and get nore effective
gover nnent s.

The League of Wonen Voters has a | ong
hi story of fighting against attacks on the
basis -- on the basic constitutional right
to fair and equal representati on guaranteed
to all citizens by the Constitution. The
League has worked vigorously in the
Commonweal th and across the country to
secure representative redistricting plans in
their states. W are seeking reforns that
assure that the redistricting process is

nonpartisan, equitable and open.
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We understand that the current
sharing of political power in the General
Assenbly provides a best opportunity for
enactnent of redistricting reformthat we
have had in recent decades or may have in
the future, but it troubles us to hear the
runors that a backroom agreenment has been
reached between chanbers to accept each
other's plans, thus protecting incunbents
and perpetuating nore pol ari zati on of
gover nnent .

The current systemin Virginia only
encour ages parti san gerrynmanderi ng whi ch
creates seats so politically askew that the
opposition has little chance of ever
exceedi ng the incunbent. It subverts the
denocrati c system because it all ows
politicians to choose their voters rather
than vice versa. It limts the vetting of
new people wth new i deas and solutions to
public policy issues. Partisan
gerrymandering has fairly reduced the nunber
of conpetitive seats in Virginia.

In 2007 Virginia Senate races -- in
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the 2007 Virginia Senate races, incunbents

of 17 of the 40 races had no opposition, and

only nine races were conpetitive. 1In the
100 House of Del egate races, 30 -- |I'm
sorry -- 57 incunbents had no opposition and

only 12 of 100 races were conpetitive.

In 2009 | egislative el ections, 32 of
the 100 nenbers of the General Assenbly
faced no opposition and only 12 races were
consi dered conpetitive.

Voters feel that their representative
of the inposing party has no reason to
listen to them as constituents. The |ack of
contested and conpetitive districts has
contributed to a decreasing voter turnout in
Virginia. The voter turnout for state-w de
and House of Del egates elections in 1997 was
49 and a half percent. 1In 2001 it was 46
percent. In 2005 it was only 45 percent.
The turnout in the 2003 House of Del egates
el ection, when there was no state-w de
races, was 31 percent. The 52.7 percent
turnout in the 2006 heavily contested U. S.

senatorial election was a marked contrast to
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the 39th percent turnout in 2002 when an
I ncunbent U. S. senator was contested by only
two wel | - known candi dat es.

Vot er turnout for the 2009 gener al
el ection showed a simlar trend. In
contrast to the 74.5 percent turnout for the
2008 presidential election, the turnout for
the 2009 Virginia |legislative el ection was
40. 4 percent, which was an i nprovenment on
t he 30.2 percent turnout in the 2007
el ections, the |lowest rate reported by the
State Board of Elections, going back to
1976.

One of the nobst significant effects
of partisan gerrymandering in Virginia, as
el sewhere in the country, is its
contribution to the increasing pol arization
of legislative bodies. As quoted in the
League of Whnen Voters Virginia study Does
Your Vote Really Count, "Wth |little reason
to fear voters, representatives increasingly
cater to party insiders and donors rather
than to the political center. Bipartisan

conprom se around nodern policies takes a
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back seat to party loyalty, resulting in
historic |l evels of polarization.”

This is certainly true of the
Virginia General Assenbly of recent years.
The gerrymandering districts established in
the 2001 redistricting have resulted in the
el ection of candidates who are unwilling to
conprom se on | egislation, the budget
transportation i ssues and funding. W are
encour aged that you are listening early
bef ore you get the reveal i ng consensus
nunmbers. W ask that you work with the
House in good faith and in transparent ways
as you work through the process. |Input
should and can be taken by the Wb, should
be posted so that the public can see the
process. More hearings should be schedul ed
once the legislation is drafted and naps are
proposed.

Virginia is the cradl e of denocracy
in the United States. Let's again be a
beacon of good governnent and show t he
nati on that by having a better system we can

and wll have better government for and by
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t he peopl e when they truly have a voi ce.

SENATOR HONELL: In the beginning you
nmenti oned that you would like it on the Wb.
| neant to say that we have M. Austin here,
who's a court reporter, and everything
that's said wll be going up on the Wb.
Thank you.

We have two nore nenbers who have
j oi ned us, Senator Steve Martin and Senat or
Ral ph Smith, and |I would just |like to ask
themto describe their districts, or
geographically their districts.

SENATOR MARTIN: | could do the lines
for you if you want.

| represent the 11th Senate District,
whi ch is nost of the County of Chesterfield
and all the Gty of Colonial Heights. |
previously chaired the Privil eges and
El ections Conmttee back a few years ago. |
have been through a couple of redistrictings
al ready, one in the House and then one in
the Senate. This will be ny third.

SENATOR SM TH:  well, thank you. |

am a nenber of the Privileges and El ections
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Commi ttee, but I'mnot a nenber of this
subcomm ttee. Thank you for giving ne a
sign and a seat up front anyway. So | am
here to welcone all of you to ny part of the
commonwealth. It's so good to have you. |

t hank you for choosing to have your Kkickoff
nmeeting here. | represent Roanoke County,
Mont gonery County, the Gty of Salem the
City of Radford and Botetourt County. |

t hank all of you for com ng out.

SENATOR HOWNELL: Thank you. The next
person who signed up is Charles Jordan. He
just wal ked out.

Is there anyone el se who woul d Ii ke
to make comments? Yes, sir. Well, we'll
give hima few mnutes. | think they're
trying to find M. -- you don't see hinf
Ckay. |Is there anyone el se?

M5. CREASY: Yes. It seens to ne --

SENATOR HONELL: I'msorry. |If you
woul d gi ve your nane.

MS. CREASY: Barbara Creasy. | think
the reason I|'mhere is | was bothered ten

years ago. It doesn't make rational sense.
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I I'ike what the lady fromthe | eague sai d.
That's what we want. W want sonet hi ng
rational. Wat -- | guess that's what |I'm
saying, is we really need the nonparti san

i dea, pl ease.

SENATOR HONELL: Thank you. Anyone
el se?

SENATOR MARTIN. May | ask a question
because | cane in a little late. D d
you-all go over, for informational purpose,
|l et them know the requirenents with regards
toredistricting and all that sort of thing?

SENATOR HOWAELL: Yes, we did. Yeah,
we did.

MS. CREASY: Do you anticipate
problenms? 1s this going to be difficult to
get through?

SENATOR HOANELL: You know, | amvery
concerned about our tight tine franme. That
bothers me a | ot, because we get the data
that we need -- census says we will be the
first state to get the data, but it mght be
February. It could be early March. W have

to get the districts -- the -- the
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| egi sl ation passed in tine to go to the
Departnent of Justice, which has, they said
now, 60 days, and then we have to have
runni ng districts so people have tine to,
you know, to becone candidates to run and so
on. So this tine frane bothers ne.

SENATOR MARTIN:.  And this -- push it
back, and for the voters, they mght, in
fact, appreciate the fact that they have
shorter canpaigns. You shouldn't expect the
filing deadlines until md August. Then the
nom nation is not until Septenber, which
crunches up the, at best, maybe a general
el ection, like no nore than seven weeks at
the nost. And so that part of it, you know,
the public wll appreciate. But getting it
t hrough the Justice Departnment, got sone
probl ens, have themreact to it, what
happens then? These are --

M5. CREASY: Are you going to use
conmputer nodels at all?

SENATOR HOWELL: Ch, yes.

SENATOR MARTIN:  Been doing that for

the | ast 20 years.
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SENATOR HONELL: They have becone
very sophisticated. The D vision of
Legi sl ative Services is purchasing sone of
t hese programs for us. They are being -- we
have some of them here. They're being
trained on howto do it. |In addition, we
are expecting a |lot of participation, and
I'"mcertainly encouraging it fromthe --
fromthe public with sendi ng your own pl ans
into us for us to | ook at.

My theory is, the nore plans we have
to look at, the better job we are going to
be able to do, because each of themw I
have perhaps sonet hi ng that nobody el se
t hought of, but -- and there is a professor
at George Mason University -- his nane, |
think, is Mke MDonald -- who is putting
out a free programthat anybody can use, and
then it can -- you can forward to us then
what ever your plan is for us to consider.
So |l think it's going to be the npbst open
process ever, just because technology is
going to make it nmuch nore transparent and

easy for people to participate. M concern
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as chairman is just how we get the job done
in tinme.

SENATOR MARTI N Madam Chairnman, if |
m ght comrent, when you submt your
suggestions to us, | nean, it's really easy
to set, draw lines in your area as to what
you'd like for themto be, like as if it can
be done in a vacuum but it's got to be done
in relationship to the districts around us.
And when we get to West Virginia, we can't
go any further. That's going to be it. So
t hi ngs al nost have to really start in the
corner and work in to really get it to work,
and where we are when we get in the mddle
is where we are when we get in the m ddle.
Then you have -- you do some adjusti ng,
si zi ng around.

But beyond the constitutional
requi renents of contiguity conpactness and
communities of interest, wth conpactness, |
don't know t hat we have done -- well,
anyway, both parties, you can stretch that.
But we al so have the i ssue of concerns

for -- for the Justice Departnent that's
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going to certainly weigh in on that and give
us guidance with regard to mnority
interests and that sort of thing. So the
question is how far, to what extent do you
go to create a black influence district or a
bl ack, you know, nmjority district. And we
have had cases in the past on that.

| was | ooking yesterday, as a matter
of fact, Madam Chairman, at the 3rd
Congressional District, and that not only
crosses bodies of water. It actually stops
on a body of water and skips | and and uses
the river bottomto go up the river sone
mles before it picks back up. And so
it's -- it, you know, how far do you go, and
that's already going through -- and that's
not bei ng done as an attack.

SENATOR MCEACHIN:  Well, |I'mjust
going to nake a comment. To single out the
3rd Congressional District --

SENATOR MARTIN: | wasn't trying to
do that.

SENATOR MCEACHIN: I'mgoing to still

make nmy comment. To single out the 3rd
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Congressional District is a bit unfair
because there are a nunber of districts that
| eapfrog over, over boundari es.

| was once -- | used to represent the
74t h House District, and during the | ast
redi stricting, they actually gave ne a piece
of Prince CGeorge County that was popul at ed
by no -- by rabbits and squirrels and no
one. So there are plenty of exanpl es that
one can use, and there are |ots of ways we
can do it better.

SENATOR MARTIN:  And | did not nean
-- Madam Chai rman, the only reason | grabbed
t hat was because | happened to be | ooki ng at
t hat one yesterday and | said, "Boy." But
yes, absolutely. That's the reason | said
both parties, we have just stretched sone
things just out there in order to try to
adhere to what the Justice Departnent tells
us we need to do. So all of those things
have got to be taken into account when we do
it.

So back to the original part of ny

conment, when you give us sone
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reconmendati ons specific for any particul ar
area, then we -- it's not going to be able
to be done in a vacuumis ny point. It's
got to be done with all those other things
and consi derati ons.

SENATOR HONELL: Well, let's see.
M. Jordan, are you back? M. Jordan, did
you want to nake sone comments? Thank you.

MR, JORDAN. Yes. Let's see. | just
found out about this hearing recently, so |
hadn't had a chance to finalize ny comments,
and | hope to be able to submt them| ater
in the entirety.

SENATOR HOWNELL: Absol utely.

MR JORDAN. What 1'd like to say,
first of all, I would recommend t hat
the commttees foll ow some of the guidelines
and the standards that have been established
over the years by -- by various good
gover nment groups and by the courts and so
on, first of all, the respective
communi ties, conmmunities of interest,
whet her et hic, environnmental, denographic or

econom c, keep planning districts together
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to the extent practical and reasonabl e, keep
districts contiguous for pedestrians,
vehicular traffic and mass transit, run
el ectoral district boundaries along county
i nes, respect counties and cities and
bor oughs and magi sterial districts and
nei ghbor hoods to the extent possible, and
where they have to be divided, give sone
preference to natural boundaries such as
rivers, nountain ridges, railroads,
hi ghways, parkland and forest.

Let's see. Please avoid dividing
nei ghbors, i ncluding South Roanoke and
Li ndenwood. And pl ease count -- to the
ext ent possible, count institutional
popul ati ons in people's hone conmmunities
where they, their famlies and their
nei ghbors vote. Keep districts conpact
rat her than el ongated or contorted. Provide
each district a nunber and a nane, based on
-- a nane based on the character,
communi ty's | andnmarks contained in the
district.

Pl ease avoid pitfalls that tend to
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thwart denocracy. That woul d be preserving
current districts so they would put us
agai nst popul ation shifts, as they have had
their day and nust gave way to new districts
that are now deserving. You know, do not
protect incunbent | egislatives wth eroding
bases of support as their artificial tenure
will only delay the passage of innovative
| egi sl ation that we need in a changi ng
wor | d.

Pl ease do not treat this as a
parti san gane, because that's not what
matters to us as voters. W have put our
Interest in people, not parties, and we m X
t hem on our | ocal governnments and, you know,
they don't align along the traditional party
i nes.

Pl ease keep the process open, invite,
facilitate and consider public input
t hr oughout the process, invite public
comrent on maps submtted by the public,
provide full public report, and if it
becones clear that preference voting is off

in one of the districts, or that changes in
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the | ocal governnment boundaries or the state
line would result in better representati on,
pl ease report those facts, because al though
sone -- there is sone interests that nay not
want to see the information, the public
deserves to know about any opportunity to

I mprove gover nnent.

When you encounter problens, ask for
help. 1'Il gladly provide assistance, and
I'msure there are many ot her experienced
vol unteers who can be lined up across the
st at e.

| suggest you verify infornation
because with the -- with the best avail abl e
sources. For exanple, this book,

Redi stricting Law 2010, by the Nati onal
Conference of State Legislators, says on
page 84 that Fairfax Cty has bail ed out of
Section 4 of the Voting R ghts Act, but on
page 97 it says Fairfax County has bail ed
out. So | can't tell whether it's the city
or the county. And there is no source or
date provided in the docunent to docunent

t hese actions, and it is difficult to tell
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which of either of locality is still subject
to federal preclearance.

So I thank you for this opportunity,
and | hope to submt nmy comments in a better
arrangenent at a future tine. Thank you.

SENATOR HONELL: Thank you very nuch,
and we are eager to receive them W are
eager to receive your expanded commrents.

MR, JORDAN:. Thank you.

SENATOR HONELL: Do it by Internet if
you woul d |ike. Ckay.

Sir, are you ready?

MR COCPER  Yes.

SENATOR HOWNELL: If you would
identify yourself.

MR COOPER. M nane is Carl Cooper,
Roanoke City. | would like to begin by
saying hello to Senator Smth, forner mayor
of Roanoke City. |It's good to see you, sir.

| too also only recently sort of was
noticed of this neeting, and I wll be
revi sing and expandi ng ny coments and
submtting them too.

| guess | would |ike to begin by
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sayi ng one of the main things |I would |ike
to see happen in this process is that the

process is fair, but also -- but the nmain

thing is sone bipartisanship.

Sonetines for sone light reading I'11
go back and go over the Federalist Papers
and see sone of the back and forth that
happened during the tine when they were
witing those docunents and sone of the
maj or i ssues that they had to confront, not
unl i ke what we have to confront today, and
I*'m always struck by the civility and the
tone that was taken between peopl e that
vehenmently di sagreed wth each ot her on
policy positions. |t was phenonenal, the
courteousness and the ability that they had
to get along and to carry out public
business in a way that engendered confi dence
fromthe public in that process, and then
the public hearing it out.

So | would ask if -- if you guys
could find a way to have sone
bi parti sanship. | know t hat behi nd cl osed

doors you are probably |i ke great pals and,
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you know, everything is fun, and by the tine
it gets to the press, there's a war goi ng
on. But it's having an effect throughout

t he commonweal th, need | say throughout the
country, and | would just say to each of

you, because you are all fine, distinguished
peopl e who took an oath to protect and to
serve and do the best for the commopnweal th
and for the country, and I woul d ask each of
you during those heated noments, when you
are really getting down to the nuts and
bolts of putting this together, to try to
keep that in m nd.

Il will go on to say that the process
really does need to be rational. | nean,
over the last three, four, three, four tines
of this redistricting process, | nean, it's
alnost like a wnner-take-all, and the party
in power is the bully, and they get to do
pretty nmuch what they want, draw it the way
they want, and it's like, "Ch, well, too
bad, mnority party. W are going to do it
t he way that we want to."

Wll, | for one, and nost citizens,
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don't want it that way. | nean, because as
a society, as a state, as a country, we
don't operate that way. That's not how we
operate. When we have to do things out in

t he community, we rely on each other no
matter what the situation is, and we expect
the sane thing fromthe | egislator, for
you-all to rely on each other, and so enough
t here.

So | would also ask that you guys do
as much as you can to limt the -- |limt
out si de i nfluences on the process. |
bel i eve that we know that, okay, Virginiais
going first. W know that the presidential
el ections are coming up. W know t hat
Virginia gets | ooked at in a nunber of ways
for a nunber of reasons that has national
inmplications. And I would just ask each of
you and ask your coll eagues also to try to,
you know, keep those outside influences on
our process, on our comohweal t h process,
and the things that are best for our
commonweal t h, keep them at bay, okay, and

have everyone thinking about what is best
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for the commonweal t h.

And when we tal k about what's best,
one of the things that | would definitely
want to see and ask you to ensure that
communities of interest and the senator --
Senat or Maxwel | ?

SENATOR MARTI N: Martin.

MR. COCPER:  Senator Martin brought
up as an exanpl e bl ack popul ati on and what
have you, and | would totally agree. |
mean, that's sonmething that needs to be
| ooked at, protected. There's al so sone
mention about the bailouts, certain
|l ocalities that opted out of not the whole
Cvil Rights Act, but that section on -- of
pol i ng novenents. So | would ask that we
keep in mnd -- that we keep in mnd the --
t he uni que historical chall enges of
popul ations of color in this conmmbnwealth.

For instance, in Roanoke City, which
has been characterized in the nmajor press as
the nbost segregated city in the Sout h,
roughly 80 percent, 85 percent, sone would

even say 90 percent, of the popul ati on of
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color lives in one quadrant of the city. So
if during this process sonehow that was
gerrymandered in a certain way, okay, that
woul d be voting strength. So | woul d ask

the commttee to be aware of those types of

situations and ensure that the -- the voting
strength -- and a lot of the voting strength
has built up over decades, okay -- that

voting strength be preserved, because even
where there is voting strength, especially
wi t h popul ati ons of col or and what have you,
it is -- the -- it does not approach the

maj ority voting strength, and so that needs
to be kept in mnd al so.

The -- | agree that open access --
appl aud the -- the legislator and this
comm ttee for having these neetings. |
think in ten years -- who knows what w ||
happen by then, but nore advertising, a
little earlier and nore places, and in nore
pl aces, the nore -- nore mnority press, to
reach nore peopl e.

Al so, as this process goes forward,

maki ng sure that our Latino brothers and
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sisters and their popul ations al so know
about this process. And therein also is

a community that needs to be | ooked at

and -- and kept in m nd, because they have
significant chall enges, sonewhat |ike the
African Anerican chall enges, but they have

sone uniquely different ones that inpact on

redistricting and revision. |In ny revision
and extension of remarks I'll get nore into
t hat .

So with that, that's all | have. And

I just thank you for listening, and I
appreci ate you guys bei ng here.

SENATOR HONELL: Thank you. Those
were very hel pful coments.

MR. COCOPER: Thank you.

SENATOR HOWELL: Qur col |l eague,
Senat or John Edwards, has arrived.

Thank you for comng. |'msurprised
you are here. | heard you had your own
meeting toni ght on trains.

SENATOR EDWARDS: I did. | didn't
have this -- you know, we overl apped. | had

a town neeting on rail passenger
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transportation in Western Virginia, the
Departnent of Rail and Transportation. W
had a very good neeting, had a huge crowd.

| apol ogi ze for being late. | was going to
say this is so far fromwhere | |ive.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: D d you wal k?

SENATOR EDWARDS: | |ive about a half
a mle from here.

SENATOR SM TH: Madam Chair, if | may
comment. All the people that should have
been here were over at John's. It was a
tremendous crowd, a |lot of energy to bring
passenger rail hone from Lynchburg on to
Roanoke. It ties into Antrak. But you did
a good, good job with that.

And | nust say the House had its
ki ckoff hearing right here in this same
room There were not nearly as nmany
menbers, comm ttee nenbers fromthe House.
So that's -- that's a feather in this
senate's cap. You have -- you have a | ot
nore people here. Unfortunately, we don't
have a | arger crowd out here to greet you,

but thanks for show ng up.
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SENATOR HOWNELL: Thank you. W are
doi ng everything we can think of. And thank
you for your, M. Cooper, for your
addi ti onal comments on other groups to
reach. W know at | east 60,000 e-nails have
gone out about these neetings, at |east
60, 000, and we keep trying to add on the
list. Now, that's state-wide. | nean, it
wasn't 60, 000 peopl e here, but at |east
60, 000 peopl e who' ve sent e-nmils about our
hearings. W' ve notified the press. It's
up on the General Assenbly's website, and if
you have any ot her suggesti ons, especially
iIf they're free or nearly free, |let us know.

Does anyone el se have comrents? Yes.

MR. MACFARLAND: Madam chai rman, one
thing that m ght help the conmttee would be
If the staff would supply it wth Judge
Richard C. Pattisall's brief that he wote,
now about nine, eight or nine years ago,
that covers primarily conti guousness and
conpactness. It's very well witten. It
won't take you long to read, and frankly,

it's a good primer.
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He had the case, that you nmay recall,
that occurred down in Eastern Virginia, and
I think it would be hel pful to you as you
approach that one conponent of the overal
job. That was all | had to say.

SENATOR HONELL: G eat. Thank you.
Thank you. GCkay. Anyone else? Do you have
anyt hi ng?

MR. BELL: | guess everybody here,

t hose that are here are all concerned about
| osing representation. 1It's in the back of
all of our mnds. But do you have anyt hi ng

prelimnarily about nunbers as far as

districts -- one that hasn't been nenti oned
to the press, are we expected to -- to add
or -- to either add a congressi onal seat or

| ose a congressional seat? |Is either of
that -- are the nunbers shifting state-w de
now?

SENATOR HONELL: Let ne refer you to
M. Cotter fromthe Legislative Services if
you don't m nd.

MR COITER In ternms of the U S

Congress, based on what has been said so
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far, which is not final, so it could change,
but we are supposed -- Virginia is expected
to stay at 11 seats. And in terns of
Ceneral Assenbly districts, there are sone
data for 2009 estinates that are actually up
on the redistricting website, if you | ook at
the Drawing the Line, the first for Draw ng
the Line which is up on the Virginia
redistricting website, it has sone
prelim nary nunbers about where the
districts currently are and how -- how in
deviation they are with the popul ati on
nunbers.

MR. BELL: Just an average size, do
you know an average size, Senate and the

House, what they need to increase by?

MR, COTTER | can you tell you the
average size, what -- that -- based on
prelimnary nunbers, what they're -- what
the ideal is, what equality is. | can give
you that. But again, this is based on
esti mated 2009. So these nunbers will end

up changing for Senate districts if the

I deal population is 197,277. For
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congressional districts, its ideal

popul ation is 717,370, and for House of

Del egates district, the ideal district is
78,911, and that's 2009 estimates. So when
we actually get the real nunbers, that's
goi ng to change sonewhat, but that's what we
have ri ght now.

MR. BELL: So roughly 20th Senate
District and eight -- eight -- |I'mjust
doing the math in ny head, how nuch bi gger
they are. | guess the idea of how many
seats, kind of cal culate how many seats in
the western part are considered likely to
shift to the glorious parts of Northern
Virginia. That goes through a |ot of
peopl e's heads, what's going to happen as we
go long-termin the western part of the
state in concerns of representation. |
mean, Senator Deeds has a | ot of thought.

SENATOR DEEDS: If you |l ook at what's
on the web, we are down a little bit in
Sout hwest Virginia. Frombasically ny area
west, we are down about half a district. In

Sout h Hanpt on Roads they are down a little
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bit nore than a half a district. And Mark
Herring and Chuck Colgan up in Prince

W1l liam County, Loudoun County, are really
represent -- they represent al nost, between
the two of them they represent al nost four
districts. The population is three and a
hal f, four people. So there's going --
we're going to have to find a way to get a
district up there, a new district up there.
W are just going to have to -- the
districts are going to get larger all over
t he state.

SENATOR MARTIN:. May | ask a question
to make sure you are -- the territory you
are tal king about, frombasically your area,
when you say west, you nmean south to the --

SENATOR DEEDS: | nean from 29 west
to the -- to Sout hwest Virginia.

SENATOR MARTIN:.  And all the way --
and south to -- that | eaves you about a
hal f --

SENATOR DEEDS: | think -- as you
| ook at the prelimnary nunmbers from 2009 --

this is all specul ati on because it's based
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on the 2009 nunbers -- we are about half a
district short from29 west, and they are a
little bit nore than half a district short

t han Sout h Hanpt on Roads. The districts are
going to have to get larger to acconmmbdate
popul ation growth in Northern Virginia.
That's just a fact of life.

Now, does that nmean -- you know what,
it doesn't look Iike we should | ose any nore
t han Sout h Hanpt on Roads shoul d | ose, but
t he nunbers, we won't get prelimnary
nunbers fromthe Census Bureau until the 1st
of February. So anyone that is fooling with
maps right nowis just fooling.

SENATOR HOWNELL: Thank you for saying
t hat, because |I'm concerned. | hear, you
know, runors that sone people think that we
have already set the districts. W don't
even have the basic nunbers yet. W have
not set any districts. Wat you see in the
Drawi ng the Line, and it's on the -- on the
Wb, is the best that we have got, and we
know it's inaccurate.

MR. MACFARLAND: My five-year-old
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daughter with crayons would be able to
vol unteer for the job.

SENATOR HOWELL: She nmy have the
best pl an.

Anyone el se? Yes, sir.

MR. VWEBB: There's -- there has been
the tal k about depopul ation --

SENATOR HOMNELL: I'msorry. Could
you identify yourself?

MR VEBB: M/ nane is Andrew Webb. |

actually work here at this school. That's
how | found out about this. | got off work
at 7:00.

But there's been tal k about, in

certain corners, about what's going to
happen to the 9th District as far as its
need to incorporate new areas due to a
certain anount of population retraction in
that area. O course that's a very -- wth
It being a very unique district, unique
culture -- need to put it bluntly. There --
there is concern that as Northern Virginia
grows less and less, area that's

depopul ating li ke that, wll get |ess and
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| ess representation.

What can be done or is being done to
preserve the uni queness of the district |ike
that, and at the sane tine | would like to
say that whatever gets done is done in the
best interest of that district, and not
based on the insistences of presunptive
congr essi onal candi dates who continue to
insist Salemwon't be in the 9th, but --

SENATOR HOWNELL: The courts are very,
very clear. The districts have to be the
sane si ze.

SENATOR MARTI N: Popul ati on.

SENATOR HOWELL: Excuse ne. The
popul ati on nmust be the sane. They are not
permtting variance at the congressional
level. It's conceivable that you could --
iIf you tried -- if you are not exactly, and
| mean to the person, the sane size, you are
going to be in court. You may end up in
court anyway, but the courts have been very
clear that it is only in very unusual
ci rcunstances would they allow a few or

maybe even a few hundred people in a
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vari ati on between congressional districts.
They have said that over and over in court.

So what ever the nunbers turn out,
that is going to drive how nuch | arger the
9th District will be. Now, you know, the
converse of that is people often in the --
in the areas with rapidly grow ng
popul ati ons are underrepresented. So that's
why the courts are stepping in and will step
in.

SENATOR DEEDS: And, Madam Chair,
read Baker against Carr, 1964 Suprene Court
case, that's the foundation of all of this.
If the 2009 census figures or prelimnary
figures are accurate, the 9th District wll
grow. It's just a question of where it
gr ows.

SENATOR HOWNELL: This is nuch nore
informal than | expected. Thank you all
very nmuch for discussing with us. D d
anyone el se have any comment s?

SENATOR EDWARDS: Thank you for
com ng to Roanoke. Appreciate it.

SENATOR HONELL: It's a lovely pl ace
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spendi ng the evening wth us.

(8:00 p.m)

48
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CERTI FI CATE
COVWONVWEALTH OF VIRA NI A
COUNTY OF ROANCKE
I, Frank R Austin, Notary Public in and for
t he Commonweal th of Virginia, at Large, do hereby
certify that the foregoi ng proceedi ng was by ne
reduced to machi ne shorthand, afterwards transcri bed
by ne by neans of conputer, and that to the best of
nmy ability the foregoing is a true and correct
transcri pt of the proceedings.
| further certify that this proceedi ng was
taken at the tinme and place specified in the
f or egoi ng capti on.
| further certify that | amnot a relative,
counsel or attorney for any party, or otherw se
interested in the outcone of this action.
I N WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny
hand at Roanoke, Virginia on the 22nd day of
Novenber, 2010.

FRANK R AUSTI N
NOTARY PUBLI C

My Conm ssi on expires Decenber 31, 2010.
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